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RESOLUTTON 2011-007

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE 2OO9.2OIO ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR
THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

WHEREAS, the State of Oregon requires all local governments to have their annual
financial reports audited and submitted to the Secretary of State's Office by December
31tt annually, and

WHEREAS, the City of Shenruood has compfeted its annual financial report for the year
ended June 30,2010, and

WHEREAS, the firm of Mueller, Grove and Swank has completed the required audit of
the City's annual financial report, attached as Exhibit A.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:

Section l: To accept the Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30,
2010 and the associated auditor's reports, attached as Exhibit A.

Section 2: This Resolution is effective upon its approval and adoption

Duly passed by the City Council this 18th day of January 2011

Ke S. Mays, Mayor

Attest:

t,6a: Zn-¿-
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CR.OVE, MUELLER & SWANK, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC AÉCOUNTANTS AND CONSUITANÏs
475 Cottage Strcel NE, Suite 200 $ Salem, oregon 97301

(s03) s8I-7788

INDEPENDENT AU D ITO R'S RE PORT

Honorable Mayor and Members
Of the City Council
City of Sherwood, Oregon
22560 SW Pine Street
Sherwood, Oregon 97140

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the City of Sherwood, Oregon (the City) as of and for
the years ended June 30,2010 and2009, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed

in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Cþ's management. Our

responsibilþ is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

Vy'e conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America

and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the

Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes

examining, on a test basis, evidence supporling the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit

also includes assessing the accounting principles used and signihcant estimates made by management, as well as

evaluating the overall hnancial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the f,rnancial

position of the City of Sherwood, Oregon as of June 30,2010 and2009, andthe changes in financial position and

cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America.

In accordanc e with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 19, 20 l0 on

our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain

provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to

describe the scope ofour testing ofinternal control over f,rnancial reporting and compliance and the results ofthat
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report

is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be

considered in assessing the results ofour audits.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management's discussion

and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the

basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an

essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,

economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary

information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
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consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the

information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other

knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide

any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufhcient evidence to

express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise

the City of Sherwood's frnancial statements as a whole. The introductory section, combining and individual

nonmajor fund financial statements and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are

notrequired parts of the financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements

are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and

other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing

procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing

and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the

financial statements or to the frnancial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. The introductory and statistical

sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures apptied in the audit ofthe basic financial statements

and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

GROVE, MUELLER, & SWANK, P,C.

C ERTI FIED P U B L IC ACCOUNTANTS

By:
Charles A. Swank, A Shareholder

November 19,2010

I
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City of Sherwood, Oregon
Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Year Ended June 30' 2010

As management of the City of Sherwood, we offer readers of the City's financial statements this narrative

overview and analysis ofthe f,rnancial activities ofthe City for the year ended June 30, 2010.

Financial Hiehliphts

June 30,

2010 2009

Net assets s 114,085,807 $ 110,262,819

Change in net assets 3,922,987 3,906,892

Govemmental activities net assets 11,724,090 11,827,925

Govemmentalactivities change in net assets (97,835) (942,007)

Business-type activities net assets 102,361,717 98,440,894

Business-type activities change in net assets 3,920,822 4,848'899

Overview of the Financial Statements

This section provides an overview of the City's basic f,rnancial statements. The basic financial statements consist

of l) government-wide hnancial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.

Government-wide finøncial statements. These statements present information on the City's finances in a manner

similar to a private-sector business.

Information in the government-wide financial statements is segregated into governmental activities and business-

type activities. Business-type activities are the water, sanitary, and storm sewer utilities, streets, and

teiecommunications. These activities are intended to be self-suppofting, with utility charges for services and

restricted intergovernmental revenue (for streets) covering operations, and infrastructure development fees funding

capital improvements. Governmental activities include Administration (City Manager, Finance, City Recorder,

Human Resources, and Information Services); Community Development (Engineering, Planning, and Building);

Community Services (Library, Fieldhouse, and Events and Recreation); Public Safety (Police and Emergency

Management); Public Works (Administration and Facilities, and Parks Maintenance); and Asset Depreciation,

UrbanRenewal, Ceneral Construction, and Debt Service activities. These activities are supported to a large degree

by property taxes.

The statement of net assets shows the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as

net assets. All capital assets and long-term liabilities, including those attributable to general government functions,

are shown in the statement of net assets.

3
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The statement of activities shows revenues, expenses, and the change in net assets for the Ciry as a whole.
Revenues and expenses attributable to specific departments and programs are segregated from general revenues, to
display the extent to which general revenues suppoÍ each function.

Fundfinancial stqtements: A fund is a distinct accounting entity that is used to segregate resources restricted to
parlicular purposes. All of the City's funds are categorized as either govemmental funds or proprietary funds.

Governmental funds account for the same functions as reported as governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. However, as more fully explained in the notes to the financial statements, govemmental

funds focus on measuring available spendable resources. This information is essential for preparation of and

compliance with annual budgets. It is a narrower perspective than used in the government-wide ltnancial
statements, which include long-term resources and uses. A reconciliation between the balance sheet for
govenmental funds and the statement of net assets for governmental activities is presented following the former.
A reconciliation between the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for governmental

funds and the statement of activities for governmental activities also follows the former.

Enterprise fund financial statements provide the same information as the government-wide financial statements,

only in more detail.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for each of its funds, and budgetary comparisons have been

provided for each.

Notes to the basic financial statements: The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the financial statements.

Required supplementary information: In addition to the basic financial statements and notes, this report also

presents required supplementary information, and budget schedules for the General Fund and major special

revenue funds.

Other supplementary information; Budgetary schedules for all other funds are included here, as well as schedules

of property tax transactions for both the City and the Urban Renewal Agency.

Statisticql information: Statistical schedules for fund, government wide, general govemment, property taxes, debt,

and other information are included here.

Govern ment-wide Financial Analysis

Comparative data for the Statements of Net Assets follows.

4
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Current and other assets

Capital assets

Total assets

Other tiabilities
Long-term liabilities

Total liabilites

City of Sherwood

Statements of Net Assets

June 30,

Govemmental Activities Business-type Activities
2010 2009 2010 2009

Totals
2010 2009

$ 5,454,158

35,163,958
$ 6,594,s07

36,136,194
s 19,313,7'71

105,242,994
s 20,123,198

97,280,212
s 24,',167,929 $

140,406,952

26,7t7,705
t3f ,416,406

40,618,1 16

566,4r4
28J27,611

820,133
30,088,643

r,44r,664
20,753,380

1,683,102

t7,279,4r4
2,008,078

49,080,991

160,134,1 I I

2,503,235
47,368,057

42,730,701 r24,ss6,76s 1!1A03410 165,174,88 1

28,894,025 30,908,776 22, 195.044 18,962,516 5 1,089,069 49,871,292

Net assets

Investment in capital assets,

net ofrelated debt

Restricted
Unrestricted

14,235,108

94,621
(2,60s,639)

12,402,695
1,040, I 02

(t,620,872)

84,563,36 I
10,501,066

7,297,289

80,054, I 50

12,792,83s
5,593,909

98,798,469
10,59s,687

4,691,650

92,456,845
13,832,937

f ,973,037

Totalnetassets $11,724,090 S 11,821,925 $ 102,361,717 $ 98,440,894 $ I 807 $ 110,262,819

At June 30,2010, the City reported total assets of $165,174,881. Of this amount, fil40,406,952 represented long-

lived capital assets, net ofdepreciation. The capital assets are usedto provide services to the residents ofthe City

ofsherwood and do not represent spendable resources available for budgetary appropriation.

In the current year, govenìmental revenues were approximately $97,800 less than govemmental expenses, and

business-type revenues were approximately $3,920,800 more than expenses, yielding a net increase overall of
approximately $3,823,000. Governmental revenues were less than the previous year, while expenses were more.

Business-type revenues increased, while expenses stayed constant.

The comparative Statement of Activities is as follows:

5
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City of Sherwood

Statements of Activities
For the year ended June 30,

201 0

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total

2009

Govemmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

Revenues

Program revenues

Charges for sewices

Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

General revenues

Property taxes

Franchise fees

Intergovernmental
Other general revenue

Sale of capital assets

Total revenues

Expenses

Administration
Community development
Public safety

Comrnunity sewices
Public works
Interest on long-term debt
Water
Sanitary

Storm

Street

Telecommunications

Total expenses

Change in net assets before transfers

Transfers in/(out)

Change in net assets

Beginning net asæts

Ending net assets

$ 1,366,664 $

1,181,504

124,903

8,006,976

1,646,827

326,799
43,517

196,290

4,396,849
|,514,472
3,817,798

I,117,317
1,280,597

t,l3 I,451

6,067,660 S

I,76t ,107
2,455,333

2,682,923

456,138
67l,ls0

2,834,235
207,628

7,434,324
2,942,611
2,580,236

8,006,976

1,646,827

326,799
I,399,482

196,290

4,396,849
1,514,472

3,817,798
I,717,317
I,280,597
I,l3 t,45t
2,682,923

4s6,138
671,150

2,834,235
207,628

I,912,531
797,277

1,012,409

7,525,619
1,392,529

364,407
t32,93J

$ s 4,8s0,61s s
1,979,035
3,717,888

579,612

6,763,146
2,776,312
4,730,297

7,525,619
I,392,529

364,407
712,5451,355,965

12,891,480 I1,640,065 24,533,545 13,t37 ,705 l l,127.150 24,264,855

3,355,687
1,70s:761
3,937,639
1,678,s74
1,301,233
1.548,302

3,35s,687
1,705,761

3,937,639
I,678,574
I,30't,233
1,s48,302
2,880,009

526,200
659,026

2,444,678
320,854

2,880,009
526,200
659,026

2,444,678
320,8s4

13,858,484 6,852,074 20,710,558 t3,527,196 6,830,767 20,357,963

(96s.004) 4,787.991 3,822,987 (389.49r ) 3,906,892

867 169

(97,83s)

11,821,925

(867,t69) (552,s 1 6) 552,516

3,920,822

98,440,894

3,822,987

110,262,819

(942,007)

12,763,932

4,848,899

93,591,995

3,906,892

106,355,927

s l 1,724,090 $102,361,716 $ 114.085.806 $ 11,821,92s $ 894 $ 110.262.819

C overnmenl al act iv il ies :

Governmental expenses were funded from the following sources

6
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City of Sherwood

Governmental Activities - Pelcentage of Funding

For the year ended June 30,

201 0 2009

Charges for services

Property taxes

Other

ll%o

62%

27Yo

1s%

59Yo

260/0

Total revenues lO\Vo l00o/o

Overall, total revenues and expenses remained fairly constant.

Bus iness-type actív ities :
As in govemmental activities, total revenues and expenses remained fairly constant.

Fund Financial Analysis

Governmental funds: The focus of the governmental funds is to provide information on near-terrn inflows,

outflows, and balances of spendable resources. In particular, uffeserved fund balance measures the City's net

resources available for spending in the next fiscal year. At June 30,2010, total fund balance of the governmental

funds was 54,174,329.

The General Fund had a fund balance of$1,862,794 at June 30,2070, an increase of$964,041. The increase was

due primarily to the cost saving efforts of the city staff.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During the year, a supplemental budget was adopted which increased expenditures by $77,500. The reason for the

supplemental budget was to provide funding for capital projects in other funds. Actual revenue for the year was

approximately $468,000 less than budgeted revenue. Actual expenditures for the year were approximately

$61 1,000 less than budgeted expenditures.

Significant Changes in Major Funds

The General Fund balance increased approximately $1,000,000 from 2009 due to cost cutting measures by city

staff. The General Construction fund balance decreased by approximately 90o/o, this is due to the completion of the

Stella Olsen Stage Cover and the Stella Olsen Parking lot projects. The Water fund balance decreased about

$1,000,000 from 2009 due to work on the water reservoir and pipeline projects. The Sanitary fund balance

decreased about $500,000 from 2009 due to infrastructure in the new Brookman aÍea development. The Street fund

balance increased approximately 5800,000 due to the receipt of loan proceeds for the Adams Ave. project. The

Telecom fund balance doubled lÌom 2009 due to the reduction ofcapital costs and an increase in service revenue.

The URA fund balance decreased approximately $1,000,000 due to capital costs related to the Cannery project'

Capital Assets

The City's investment in capital assets at June 30, 2010 was 5140,406,952 net of accumulated depreciation.

Capital assets, net of depreciation, were as follows. Details of the changes in capital assets can be found in the

-7-
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notes to the hnancial statements.

City of Sherwood

Capital Assets

June 30,

2010 2009

Governmental activities
Nondepreciable capital assets

Depreciable capital assets, net

Total

Business-type activities
Nondepreciable capital assets

Depreciable capital assets, net

Total

Total
Nondepreciable capital assets

Depreciable capital assets, net

Total

s 9,534,926

2s,629,033

s 9,301,914

26,834,280

35,t63,959 36,136,194

33,s48,239

71,694,7 5s

30,784,012

66,496,200

t05,242,994 97,280,212

43,083, | 65

97,323,788

40,085,926

93,330,480

s 140,406,952 $ 133,416,406

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2010, the City of Sherwood had $6,365,000 in general obligation bonds and S42,308,485 in other debt

outstanding. All debt is secured by the full faith and credit of the City. The general obligation bonds are repaid by

property tax levies. The other debt is being repaid by rent of the recreational facility, system development charges,

property tax increment revenue from the City of Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency, and unrestricted resources.

Changes in debt are detailed in the notes.

On May l, 2010 Moody's lnvestors Service initiated the local government recalibration of its municipal rating

scale. All municipal credits rated by Moody's were changed to a Global Scale Rating (GSR), which better reflects

the underlying credit quality of municipal issuers compared to that of corporate or sovereign issuers. The City of
Sherwood had an A2 ratingunder the Municipal rating scale and now has an Aa3 rating under the GSR.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates

Sherwood's population growth has slowed considerably over the last four years. Growth levels are expected to

range from 1 - 3% until the economy starts to turn. The urban growth boundary has been increased, allowing for

development once building activity increases.

The budget for the year beginning July 1, 2010 includes capital project expenditures of over $18,000,000, with a

new water supply being the largest project scheduled for construction. In addition, expenditures related to a new

water source are expected to total an additional S5-$10 million in the next few years. Operating uses are budgeted

to increase to 576,465.

Requests for Information

Questions concerning any of the information provided in thís report or requests for additional information should

be addressed to the Finance Director, 22560 SW Pine Street, Sherwood, Oregon 97140.

I
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Gity of Sherwood, Oregon
Statement of Net Assets

June 30,2010

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Deferred charges

Total current and other assets
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable capital assets
Capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Current portion of long-term debt
Other current liabilities
Current portion of compensated absences payable

Noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets:
lnvested in capital assets,

net of related debt
Restricted for:

Capitalprojects
Debt service

Unrestricted
Total net assets

5,454,158 19,313,771 24,767,929

$ 4,539,971
529,081
385,106

$ 18,531 ,303
782,468

$ 23,O71,274
1,311,549

385,106

9,534,926
35,049,820
(9,420.788)
35,163,958
40,618,1 16

33,548,238 43,083,164
97,746,859 132,796,679

(26,052,103)
105,242,994
124,556,765

(35,472,891\
140,406,952
165,174,881

221,782
8,861 ,815

344,632
133,509

954,144
10,481,044

487,520
29,500

10,242,836
22,195,044

1,175,926
19,342,859

832,152
163,009

29,575,123
51,089,069

19,332.287
28,894,O25

14,235,108

85,089
9,532

84,563,361

10,501,066

98,798,469

10,586,155
9,532

(2,605,639) 7,297,289 4,691,q!9
s tt lzq,oso $ 102,361,716 $ 1,14,085,806

---

The accompanying notes are an integrøl part ofthefinancial statements.

9-
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Departments/Proqrams

City of Sheruood, Oregon
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exoenses

Prooram Revenues
Operating Capital

Charges for Grants and Grants and
Services Contributions Contributions

Govern mental activities :

Administration
Community Development
Public Safety
Community Services
Public Works
lnterest and costs of long-term debt

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Water
Sanitary
Storm
Street
Telecommunications

Total business-type activities
Total

13,858,484 1 ,366,664 1 ,1 81 ,504

$ 4,396,849 $
1,514,472
3,817,798
1,717,317
1,280,597
1,131,451

2,886
433,505

61,951
683,1 62

613,475
263,475
48,975

275,851
164,888

$$
124,903

2,682,923
456,138
671 ,150

2,834,235
207,628

6,852,074
$ 20,710,558

3,780,473
456,512

1,330,603
313,273
186,799

1,749,107
12,000

124,903

398,682
521,268
345,319

1 ,1 90,064

2,455,333
$ 2,580,236

6,067,660 1,761,107
$7,434,324 g 2,942,611

General revenue:
Taxes
Franchise fees
lntergovernmental
lnterest
Other revenue
Gain on sale of capital assets

Transfers

Total general revenue and transfers
Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning
Net assets - ending



Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18,20'11
Page 20 of 93

Chanqes in Net Assets

,451)

$ 102,361,716 $ 114,085,806
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Gity of Sherwood, Oregon
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

As ofJune 30,2010

General

Asset
Depre-
ciation

Urban
Renewal
Agency
General

General
Construction

Debt
Service

Total
Governmental

Funds
ASSETS
Cash
Receivables

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Other liabilities
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Unreserved, undesignated

Total fund balances
Total liabilities & fund balances

305,629

1,862,794 405,998 r,810,913
1,862,794 405,998 1,810,913

_$ 2,44e,684_ _$_405,999_ _$_2, 1 I 6,!19_

9,532 4,174,326
9,532 4,174,326

$ 9,532 $ 5,06e,05'l

395,704- 133,382 

- 

529,086
$2A4e,684 _$_18999_ $ 2,116,543 _$ 87,2e4 _$_9,532_ $ 5,06e,051

$ 2,053,980 $405,998 $ 1,983,161 $ 87,294 $ 9,s32 $ 4,539,965

$ 2,205 $ $$ 45,039
316,201
225,650
586,889

$ 174,036

13'r,593

$ 221,280
316,201
357 243

2,205 894 723

85,089
85,089

$ 87,294

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthefinancial stqtements.

-n-
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City of Shenvood, Oregon
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds,

to the Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2010

Total fund balances reported for governmental funds in the balance sheet differs from
net assets reported in the statement of net assets for governmental activities.
The nature and amount of the differences is explained below:

Total fund balances - governmental funds

Long-term debt:
Principal balances of bonds, notes, and capital leases, and related unamortized
deferrals, are reported on the statement of net assets but not in the funds.
All liabilities are reported in the statement of net assets; the funds report only those
that will be liquidated with available resources.

Long-term liabilities
Deferred charges

Governmental funds record only those liabilities that will be liquidated with
available resources; the statement of net assets records expenses for
all liabilities incurred, regardless of when they will be paid.

Compensated absences
Accrued interest payable

Capital assets:
Capital assets, net of depreciation, are recorded on the statement of net assets
but not in the funds.

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Deferred revenue:
Governmental funds record property taxes due but not received within thirty days of
year-end as deferred revenue, a liability. The statement of net assets does not
show deferred revenue for property taxes.

Total net assets - governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftheJìnancial statements

-t2-

g 4,174,326

(27,e93,839)
385,1 06

(333,772)
(28,e33)

44,584,746
(e,420,788)

357,244

$ 11,724,090
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City of Sherwood, Oregon
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

General

Asset
Depre-
ciation

General
Construction

Debt
Service

Urban
Renewal
Agency
General

Total
Governmental

Funds

REVENUE
Taxes
Licenses and perm¡ts

Franchise fees
lntergovernmental
Charges for services
Rental income
I nfrastructure development fees
Fines, finance charges & forfeitures
lnterest
Other revenue

Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Administration
Community Development
Public Safety
Community Services
Public Works
Debt service

Principal
lnterest

Capital Outlay
Total expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Proceeds from long-term debt

Total other financing sources(uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

$ 4,039,542 $
83,009

1,578,593
1,257,337
465,738 27,549
173,191
1 14,396
347,328
13,855 2,534
98,784 

-

8,171,773 30,083

291 ,317

18,250
124,903

4,699 824

-1?-6-õ-439,169

4,ô90
68,769

7,676
5,415

522,250
32,049

521,989
1,162,838 936,070

$916,779 $3,019,360

42,081
10,000

$

21,603
14,222

3,107,266

$ 7,975,681
83,009

1,578,593
1,548,654

535,368
201,441
239,299
347,328
43,515

113,006
12,665,894

309,456
1,274,000
3,696,I 19
1,416,830

791,159

(1 36)

136

.136,596

50,416
163,986 50,000

7,838,562 50,000

680,082 130,004
(4s,252) (57,715)

630,830 ?2,289
964,041 52,372

670,000
266,070

2,834,805
94,551

1,563
6,123

91I,016
723,198
267,747

4,839,003

3,148,951
1 ,437,184
3,696,1 1 9
1,426,069

802,833

2,239,862
1,071,733
1,003,722

14,826,473

49,252
(200,000)

(150,748)
(874,417)

(250,000)
859,338

(556,967)
1,000,000 1,000,000
750,000 1,302,371
(981,738) (858,205)fiãrdit

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthefinancial statements.

- 13 -

898,753 353,625 959,507 27,999 2,792,650 5,032,534
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Gity of Shenarood, Oregon
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds, to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Amounts reported for governmental funds in the statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances differ from amounts reported in the statement of activities for
governmental activities. The nature of the differences is explained in Note 1 . Amounts are:

Net change in fund balances - governmental funds

Long-term debt:
Governmental funds record the proceeds from issuance of bonds, notes, and capital
leases as increases in resources; payments of principal are recorded as uses of
resources. The statement of activities does not show issuance of debt nor principal
payments. ln addition, the statement of activities includes the effects of accrued
interest and amortization of bond premiums; the governmental funds do not.

Principal paid

Amortization of bond premium and issue costs
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Reclassification of loan balance to Enterprise Funds

Governmental funds record expenditures only for those liabilities that will be
liquidated with available resources; the statements of activities records expenses for
all liabilities incurred, regardless of when they will be paid.

Compensated absences
Accrued interest payable

Capital assets:
Governmental funds record the purchase of capital assets as decreases in resources
For the statement of activities, only depreciation, which represents the usage of
capital assets over time, is recorded as a use of resources.

Reclass capital assets between funds
Capitaloutlay
Depreciation
Net book value of assets sold

Deferred revenue:
Governmental funds record property taxes due but not received within thirty days of
year-end as deferred revenue, a liability. For the statement of activities, all property

taxes receivable are recognized as revenue, regardless of when received.

Change in net assets - governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thefinancial statements.
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$ (858,207)

2,239,862
(64,185)

(1,000,000)
564,798

(43,628)
4,468

1,OO3,722
(1 ,83e,1 8e)

(136,769)

31,294

$ (e7,835)
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City of Sherwood, Oregon
Balance Sheet - Enterpr¡se Funds

June 30, 2010

Water Sanitary Storm Street Telecom

$ 8,776,140 $ 3,s63,257 $ 469,925 S 5,686,057 $ 35,924 $

ASSETS
Current asseis:

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable capital assets
Cap¡tal assets being deprecieted
Less: accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets
Total âssets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Current portion of noncurrent l¡abilities
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilit¡es

Noncurrent l¡ab¡lit¡es:
Bonds, notes, and

compensated absences payable
Total liabil¡ties

NET ASSETS
lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for cap¡tal projects
Unrestricted

Net assets

323,056 245,068 158,649 27,865 27,839
9,099,196 3,808,325 628,574 5,713,922 63,754

25,677
49,337
69,668

144,642

7,502
1,286

c?88

Total
Enterprise

Funds

18,531,303
782.468

19,313,771

954,144
10,51 0,544

487,520
11 ,952,204

10,242,836
22,195,O44

29,439,160 199,042 21,098 3,888,938 - 33,548,238

18,855,057 10,602,231 19,180,866 48,204,271 904,434 97,746,859
(3.339,345) (1.412.841',) (2,344,884) (18,5e4,6eÐ (360,340) (26,052,103)

44,954,872 9,388,432 16,857,080 33,498,516 544,094 105,242,99+

54p54p68 13,196,757 17,485,654 39,212,438 607,848 124,556,765

920,761
10,269,135

407,O52
11,596,948

47 157

44,580 146,206
lo Rno

55,427 146,363

8,626,481 59,222 351,045 1,204,159
20,223,429 114,649 497 ,408 1,348,84'l

1,929
717

26,095,1 15
2,314,457

9,292,264
3,737,692

16,372,406
308,663

32,259,082
4,140,254

544,094 84,563,361
10,501 ,066

5,421 ,066 52,152 306,775 1,464,259 53,037 ,.r=,??r,,???
¡¡¡gegg- -91-9.99?J9!- -glg9!9141- -S-91É9i.!9!- -9 5%191- -9 1-92,36E19-

The accompanyingnotes qre an integral part oftheJìnøncial statements.
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Cíty of Shenrvood, Oregon
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in NetAssets - Enterprise Funds

Fo¡ the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Water Sanitary Storm Street Telecom

Total
Enterpr¡se

Funds

Operating revenues:
lntergovernmental:

State shared revenue
County revenue
Other lntergovernmental

Charges for services:
Utility charges for services
Other charges for services
Utility connection fees

Other revenue
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Personal services:

Salaries and wages
Employment taxes
Benefits

Materials and services:
Professional & technical services
Facility and equipment
Other purchased services
Supplies
Community Activities
Minor equipment purchases
Other materials and services

Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenue (expenses)
lnterest revenue
lnterest expense

Total nonoperating revenue
lncome before contributions

Capital contributions
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

$ 683,623 $
65,484

1,000,000

$ 683,623
65,484

1 ,0't2,000

$ $ $

12,000

183,351
3,448

3,771,112
2,443
6,918

1,152,492

455,693
647
172

65,543

1,330,431

172

31 1,009
2,154

110
2,229

198,799

6,051,596
8,692
7,372

1,220,264
9,049,0314,932,965 522,055 1,330,603 2,064,609

524,136
48,583

182,676

623,1 56
103,396
300,329
105,623

398,682
538,013

(77.991\

174,836
16,953
48,958

(171,706)
14,275

134,354
7,477

521,268

Q19.245\

156,299
18,847
47,659

68,491
13,692
78,314
15,721

345,319

ß84.775\

199,1 19
21,301
66,274

(103,732)
305,1 06
30,970
50,109

1,190,064
2,986

(32ô,1 57)

15,719
1,101
3,605

1 ,070,1 09
106,785
349.172

429,076
478,471
587,1 30
178,993

12,867
42,002
43,163

63

11 ,742 2,444 7,235 21,421
240,114 126,801 89,149 117,109 4,561 577,734
262,231 96,175 161 ,643 2,142,'t15 77 ,312 2,739,476

2,401 ,986 450,567 649,815 2,828,371 207 ,628 6,538,367
2,530,979 71,488 680,788 (763,762) (8,829) 2,510,664

56,529 25,068 3,982 49,893 229 135,701
(280,e37) (5,571) (21,335) (5,864)
(224,408) ',t9,497 (17,353) 44,029 229 (178,006)

2,306,571 90,985 663,435 (719,733) (8,600) 2,332,658

2,455,333
540,999

(1 ,408,168)
3,065,275

30,765,363

393,008

12,689,100

323,979

16,664,265

147,160

37,716,435

(8,600)

605,731

3,920,822

98,440,894

$33,830,638 $13,082,108 $16,988,244 $37,863,595
-5-5õffi

$ 102,361,716

The accompanyingnotes are an integral part ofthefinancial statements
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City of Sherwood, Oregon
Statement of Cash Flows - Enterprise Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Total
Enterprise

Water Sanitarv Storm Street Telecom Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts fÍom customers and builders
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers and contractors

Net cãsh provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers (to) from other funds for operations
Net æsh prov¡ded (used) by noncapital financ¡ng

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

lnlerest paid on long-term debt
Proceeds from ¡ssuance of debt
Debt principal paid
Purchase of capital assets

Net cesh used by capital financing activ¡ties

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
lnterest receipts

Net increase (decrease) ¡n €sh
Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2009
Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2010

Reænciliat¡on of Operaling lncome to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Act¡v¡ties

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operal¡ng income to
nel €sh provided (used) by operat¡ng aclivities:

Depreciation expense
(lncrease) decrease in receivables
lncrease (decrease) in accounls payable
lncrease (decrease) in compensated absences payable
lncrease (decrease) ¡n other current l¡abilities

Net cash provided (used) by operating activjties

Noncash capital act¡vities
Capital contr¡bution - prjvate developers
Ref¡nancing of water debt

$ 4,683,118 $ 745,995
(7re,536) (240,8e5)
(811,740) (624,ô5s) (382,037) (441,935) (113,016) (2,373,387)

3,'151,A42 (119,559) 693,513 f,307,540 52,25A 5,085,5S4

503,009 (83,407) (541,788) (180,185) 

- 

(302,371)
503,009 (83,407) (541,788) (180,185) 

- 

(302,371)

$ 1,299,970
(224,42O)

(21,u1)

(135,728)

'161 ,643
(30,633)
(2e,156)

(1 ,615)

6 2,036,726 $
(287,251)

(5,86ô)

(41,758)

2,142,115
(27,883)
(27,3731

(557)

1A2,4U $
(17,21o\

8,948,293
(1,48e,312)

(314,1 56)
3, f 52,55ô

(258,e1 4)

2,739,476
56,047

407,582
36,754

$ 2,455,333
10,000,000

(7,'t44,ð371 (523,428\ (67,615) (47O,O28') (41,016) (8,246,924)
(4,315,415) (568,671) (224,6841 (522,522) (41,016) (5,672,308)

56,529 25,068 3,982 49,893 225 135,70'l

(604,035) (746,569) (68,977) 654,726 I'1,471 (753,384)
9,380,175 4,309,826 538,S00 5,031,328 24,454 19,284,683

$ 8,776140 $ 3,563,257 $ 469,925 $ 5,686,057 $ 35,924 $ 18,531,303

$ 2,530,979 $ 71,488 $ 680,788 $ (763,762) $ (8,82s) $ 2,510,664

(281,376)
3, I 52,556

(41,75e)

(5,573)

(3e,670)

96,175
223,940

(1 05,384)
(148)

262,231
(93,062)
572,620

35,859

77,3'12
(r 6,31 5)

(3,125)
3,215

(156,785) (405,630) (87,514) (15,000) 

- 

(664,929)

$ 3,151,842 $ (119,559) $ 693,513 $'1,307,540 I 52,258 $ 5,085,5s4

398,682 $ 521,268 $ 345,319 $ í,190,064 $
I 0,000,000

The accomparrying notes qre an integral part of thefinancial statements.
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City of Sherwood, Oregon
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2010

L SUMMARY OF SIGMFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting entity

The City of Sherwood is a municipal corporation
is managed by a City Manager who reports to the

governed by an elected mayor and six-member council. The City
Council.

The City of Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency (LIRA), formed July 1,2001, is a legally separate entity. The
Sherwood Cþ Council serves as the Board of Directors for the URA, and is financially accountable for its
operations. The LIRA is included as a component unit in the government-wide financial statements, blended with
the City. Financial statements of the City of Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency may be obtained from the Finance
Director of the City.

There are other governmental agencies and service districts which provide services within the City. These agencies
have independently elected governing boards and the City is not financially accountable for these organizations.
Therefore, hnancial information for these agencies is not included in the accompanying basic hnancial statements.

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements

The Cþ budgets and maintains its accounting records by fund. Each fund is a distinct fiscal and accounting entity
which segregates resources in accordance with specific restrictions or regulations. This report includes both fund
financial statements and govemment-wide financial statements.

The fund financial statements and schedules report information using the measurement focus and basis of
accounting appropriate to the particular type of fund. The govemment-wide financial statements (i.e., the
statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report information on all the activities of the City using a
single measurement focus and basis of accounting.

The government-wide financial statements report governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues, separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on user
charges for support.

The govemment-wide statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
department or program is offset by related revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific department or program. Program revenues include l) charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use, or directly beneht fiom goods, services, or privileges provided by a given department or program, 2) grants
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular department or
plogram, and 3) business license revenue. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues
are reported instead as general revenues. General revenue includes the following:

Intergovernmental: revenue from State revenue sharing, cigarette, and liquor taxes, not attributable to or
restricted to any one deparlment or program.
Infrastructure development fees: System development charges for parks, restricted to general government
capital projects.

C. Measurement focus and basis of accounting

Both the govemment-wide financial statements and the en-terprise^fund hnancial statements are reporled çing tþ9
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The governmental fund financial
statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting.

Measurement focus defines the types of transactions or events that are recorded in a fund's operating statement.
Enterprise funds focus on changes in economic resources, much like that of a private-sector business.
Governmental funds focus on changes in resources available for spending. The major differences between the two

-18-
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measuremçnt focuses are the treatment of long-term debt and capital assets. Govemmental funds record issuance
of long-term debt, principal payments on long-term debt, and the resources provided and used by the sale and
purchase of capital assets on their operating statements as revenue, expenditures, and other financing sources and
uses. Proprietary funds do not record these items on their operating statements, but do record depreciation expense
as capital assets are exhausted through use over time.

Basis of accounting defines when transactions or events are recorded. Under the accmal basis of accounting used
by the enterprise funds, revenues are recorded when eamed, and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of when the related cash is received or used. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used by
governmental funds, revenues are recognized when they become available and measurable. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities ofthe current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available ifthey are collected
within 30 days of the end of the fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as
under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

D. Funds

The City has the following governmental funds:

General: The General Fund is the primary operating fund. It accounts for financial resources not accounted
for in other funds. All indirect costs incurred on behalf of other funds are initially recorded in the General
Fund, then subsequently reimbursed by the funds benefiting from the expenditure.

Urban Renewal: The Urban Renewal Fund is the General Fund of the Urban Renewal Agency. The fund
accounts fortax increment funds ofthe agency, operational costs, and debt service payments.

Special revenue: The Asset Depreciation Fund (Resolution 2002-020) is a reserve fund, defined in Oregon
budget law that accumulates money from year to year for major capital asset purchases, improvement, and
repair, other than those funded by restricted resources. The Urban Renewal Agency General Fund is included
as a special revenue fund in these hnancial statements.

Capitøl projects: The General Construction Fund records revenue used to acquire land and to construct City
buildings, parks, sports fields, recreational facilities, and trails.

Debt service.' The Debt Service Fund accounts for property tax revenues restricted for payment of general
obligation bonds. Payments of long-term debt other than general obligation bonds are accounted for in the
General Fund.

Enterprise funds are used for operations that are similar to business enterprises, where the intent is that costs be
recovered primarily through user charges or where determination of net income or loss is useful for public policy.
The City has five enterprise funds: rvVater, Sanitary Sewer, Storm Sewer, Street, and Telecommunications. Each
fund records both maintenance activities and capital projects. The Street Fund receives restricted funding from
other governments for operations and infrastructure development fees for capital construction.

E. Fund financial statement presentation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America define major and nonmajor funds and
segregate and combine certain financial statements for those considered nonmajor. The Cþ of Sherwood has
relatively few funds and has chosen to report all of them as major.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December l, 1989, generally are
followed in both the govemment-wide and proprietary fund f,rnancial statements to the extent those standards do
not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board. Govemments also
have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their enterprise funds, subject to this same
limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

Enterprise funds distinguish between operating revenues and expenses and nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses result from providing services in connection with the utility's ongoing operations. The
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principal operating revenues are charges to customers for services, infrastructure development fees charged on
building permits, and intergovernmental revenue restricted to Street operations. Operating expenses include
contracted services for the regional sewage treatment facility, and depreciation. All revenues and expenses not
considered operating are reported as nonoperating items.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

F. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity

l. Deposits qnd investments

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, balances in the Oregon State Treasury's Local
Government Investment Pool (LGIP), and loan proceeds held by the Oregon Economic and Community
Development Department (OECDD).

LGIP balances can be withdrawn with one day's notice. The LGIP operates in accordance with appropriate state
laws and regulations. Reported values of the City's share of the LGIP are the same as fair values.

2. Receivqbles

Accounts receivable are largely for property taxes, municipal court fines, and utility services. Property tax
receivables become liens on real property if not paid. Consequently, no allowances for uncollectible accounts are
provided for them. An allowance for uncollectible accounts has been recorded for court fines receivable.

Property taxes levied for the fiscal year beginning July I are calculated on assessed values on January l. Property
taxes become a lien on the property on July L The tax roll is certified and billed in October. Taxes are due in
equal payments on November 15, February 15, and May 15. Discounts are allowed for taxes paid in full by
November 15. Unpaid taxes are late the day after the due date, and are delinquent on May 16. Interest accrues on
all late amounts. Washington County assesses, collects, and turns over property taxes for Sherwood and all other
cities in the County. The change in taxes receivable from fiscal year 2008-2009 to fiscal year 2009-2010 is an
increase of $31,294.

3. Capital assets

Capital assets are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-
wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined as assets that benefit at least two fiscal periods and have a

cost of at least $5,000.

Infrastructure is defined as long-lived capital assets that can be preserved for a significantly greater number of
years than most capital assets, and are normally stationary in nature. InÍÌastructure includes such items as water
and sewer pipes, roads, and bridges.

Purchased or constructed capital assets are recorded at historical cost, or estimated historical cost ifhistorical cost
is not known. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The costs
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not
capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Infrastructure:

Paved streets 20
Other 100

Buildings 50 to 60
Land improvements l2to20
Machinery and equipment 7 to20
Licensed vehicles l0

4. Compensated absences
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City employees accumulate eamed but unused paid time off and sick leave. There is no liability for accumulated
sick leave since the City does not pay any such amounts when employees separate from service. All unused paid
time off is accrued when incurred in the govemment-wide financial statements. A liability for these amounts is
reported in the governmental funds only if they are due because of employee separation, such as resignation or
retirement.

5. Long-term debt

In the government-wide and proprietary fund frnancial statements, long-term debt is reported as a liability of the
applicable activþ. Bond premiums, discounts, deferred charges, and issuance costs are deferred and amortized
over the life of the bonds on the straight line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable premium or
discount. Deferred charges and issuance costs are repoÍed as deferred charges and amortized over the term ofthe
related debt.

In the governmental fund financial statements, bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, are
recognized in the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other f,rnancing sources while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received,
are reported as expenditures.

6. System development charges

As part of a new housing or commercial development, developers may be required to construct public
improvements such as storm drains, sewer lines, and streets. The developers can apply for system development
charge (SDC) credits for the eligible cost of those improvements. When building permits are applied for, SDC's
are charged; simultaneously, the developers can offset the SDC charge by using SDC credits that had been
previously granted. The credits granted are useable for 7 years after acceptance of the public improvements by the
City. Any credits not used by then expire. Unused credits are considered a long-term liability and are included in
the statement of net assets.

7. Fund equity

In the fund frnancial statements, governmental funds reporl reservations of fund balance for amounts that are not
available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose. State law provides
that the cumulative surplus of the Building Department be reserved to cover any future deficits. Designations of
fund balance reflect intended use ofresources approved by the City Council.

II. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The City records all personnel and indirect costs in the General Fund departments. Periodically, other departments
and funds are charged for the net costs incurred on their behalf. The reimbursements are made based on revenue
and expenditures recorded on the budgetary basis - the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting.

III. STE\ilARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE,Af[DACCOUNTABILITY

In accordance with Oregon budget law, the City budgets all funds, including enterprise funds, using the current
fìnancial resources measurement focus. Actual results for enterprise funds are shown on both the budgetary
(current financial resources) and GAAP basis (economic resources) in this financial report.

The budget process begins with appointment of a Budget Officer and Budget Committee. Budget
recommendations are developed through late winter. The Budget Committee approves the budget in early spring;
public notices are published and public hearings held; and the Council adopts the budget prior to June 30.

Expenditures are appropriated by Division or by type, as follows:

The General Fund is split into departments which reflect city programs and managerial responsibilities. These are
grouped into five divisions for purposes ofappropriations. The divisions are:
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¡ Administration
¡ Public Safety
. Public Works
¡ CommunityDevelopment
¡ Community Services

The Asset Depreciation, Debt Service, Urban Renewal, General Construction, and the Telecommunication Funds are
appropriated based on personal services, materials and services, capital outlay, debt service, transfers out and
contingency.

Enterprise funds are appropriated by the operations or capital programs.

Expenditures cannot exceed appropriations at these legal levels of control. Management may amend line items in
the budget without City Council approval so long as appropriations at the legal level of control are not changed.
The City Council can amend the budget at the legal level of control within certain limits specified by statute.

Final budget amounts in the statements and schedules in the Financial Section reflect the original budget and
supplemental budgets.

All appropriations lapse at fìscal year-end.

IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Cash and Investments

Cash and lnvestments are reflected on the Statement of Net Assets at June 30, 2010 as follows:

Carrying
Value

Fair
Value

Deposifs
Petty cash
Deposits with financial institutions

lnvestments
Local Government lnvestment Pool

$ $2,100
1,403,566

2j00
1,403,566

21,665,608 21,665,608

g 23,071,274 $ 23,071,274

Deposits

At June 30, 2070, the City's deposits with various financial institutions had a bank value of 91,782,836. All
deposits not covered by FDIC insurance are covered by the Public Funds Collateralization Program (PFCP) ofthe
State of Oregon. The PFCP is a shared liability structure for participating bank depositories, better protecting
public funds though still not guaranteeing that all funds are 100% protected. Barring any exceptions, a bank
depository is required to pledge collateral valued at least 10% of their quarter-end public fund deposits if they are
well capitalized, 25o/o of their quarter-end public fund deposits if they are adequately capitalized, or 1 l0% of their
quarter-end public fund deposits if they are undercapitalized or assigned to pledge ll0%by the Office of the State
Treasurer. In the event ofa bank failure, the entire pool ofcollateral pledged by all qualihed Oregon public funds
bank depositories is available to repay deposits of public funds of government entities.
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Custodial Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may not be returned to
it. AtJune30,20T0,theCityhaddepositsof$250,000insuredbyfederaldepositoryinsuranceandSl,532,836
collateralized under the PFCP.

Investments

The State Treasurer of the State of Oregon maintains the Oregon Short-Term Fund, of which the Local
Government Investment Pool is part. Participation by local govenìments is voluntary. The State of Oregon
investment policies are governed by statute and the Oregon Investment Council. In accordance with Oregon
Statutes, the investment funds are invested as a prudent investor would do, exercising reasonable care, skill and
caution. The Oregon Short-Term Fund is the LGIP for local governments and was established by the State

Treasurer. It was created to meet the financial and administrative responsibilities of federal arbitrage regulations.
The investments are regulated by the Oregon Shoft-Term Fund Board and approved by the Oregon investment
Council (ORS 294.805 to 294.895). At June 30, 2010, the fair value of the position in the Oregon State

Treasurer's Short-Term lnvestment Pool was approximately equal to the value of the pool shares. The investment
in the Oregon Short-Term Fund is not subject to risk evaluation. Separate financial statements for the Oregon
Short-Term Fund are available from the Oregon State Treasurer.

Custodial Risk - lnvestments

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to
recover the value ofits investments or collateralized securities that are in the possession ofan outside party.

The LGIP is administered by the Oregon State Treasury with the advice of other state agencies and is not
registered with the U. S. Securities and Exchange Commission. The LGIP is an open-ended no-loan diversified
portfolio offered to any agsncy, political subdivision, or public corporation of the state that by law is made the
custodian of, or has control of any fund. The LGIP is commingled with the State's short-term funds. In seeking to
best serve local governments of Oregon, the Oregon Legislature established the Oregon Short-Term Fund Board,
which has established diversification percentages and specifies the types and maturities of the investments. The
purpose of the Board is to advise the Oregon State Treasury in the management and investment of the LGIP.
These investments within the LGIP must be invested and managed as a prudent investor would, exercising
reasonable care, skill and caution. The LGIP is not rated for credit quality. Professional standards indicate that the
investments in extemal investment pools are not subject to custodial risk because they are not evidenced by
securities that exist in physical or book entry form. Nevertheless, management does not believe that there is any
substantial custodial risk related to investments in the LGIP.
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Beginning
Balance Additions Deletìons

Ending
Balance

Business-type Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land
Construction work in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated

lnfrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Licensed vehicles

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation
lnfrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Licensed vehicles

$ 906,051 $

29,877,961
$ $ 906,05 r

32,642,1888,634,797 (5,870,570)

30,784,012 8,634,797 (5,870,s70) 33,548,239

87,992,878
57,065

1,587,462

171,423

7,92s,+3s

4,99s
1,600

95,918,3t2
5'7,065

\,592,4s7
t79,023

89,808,827 7,938,030 97,746,857

(22,160,666)
(13,245)

(986,54 l)
(rs2,17s)

(2,614,923)
(2,290)

(l 17,593)
(4,66e)

(24,'t'75,588)
( l 5,535)

(1,1 04, l 34)
(1 s6,844)

Total accumulated depreciatron (23,312,627) (2,739,475) (26,052,102)

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 66,496,200 5, r 98,55s 71,694,7ss

Business-type Activities Capital Assets, net $ 97,280,212 S 13,833,352 $ (5,870,570) $ 105,242,994

Depreciation expense was charged to departments/programs of the City as follows:

Governmental activities:
Administration
Community development
Public Safety
Community services
Public works

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Water
Sanitary
Storm
Sheet
Telecom

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities

$ 698,992
18,392
91,959

275,878
'754,068

$ 1,839,189

s 262,237
96,175

161,643
2,142,115

77,312

s 2,739,475

-25-



Resolution 20'11-007 , Exhibit A
January 18,2O11
Page 36 of 93

C. Long-term liabilities

l. Debt outstanding

The City uses general obligation bonds and long-term loans to finance construction and acquisition of major
capital facilities. General obligation bonds pledge the City's ability to levy properly taxes; long-term notes pledge

the full faith and credit of the City.

The City of Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency (URA) began work on construction projects in 2003-04. The City
issues debt and builds the capital projects; the URA reimburses the City for debt service, using its property tax
increment revenue. Bonds and loans outstanding at June 30, 2010 were:

Original
Amount

lnterest
Rates

Annual
Debt Service

General obligation bonds:
2004A&B refunding
2001 Police facility

Long-term loans for the City:
2001 YMCA recreation center
2002 Public Works and Fieldhouse
2005 Sunset Park

Long-term loans on behalf of the URA:
2003 Civic building
2003 OECDD Civic building & streets
2004 land purchase
2005 Sports Fields
2005 Old School
2006 URA Streets
2006 Downtown Streets
2008 URA Line of credit

Long-term loans for the Water Utility:
2010 Water supply interim loan
2008 SDW Vy'ater Reservoir
2009 Stella Olsen Culvert
2009 SDV/ Water Pipeline

$ 6,045,000
3,g4o,oo0

1,970,000
1,900,000
2,300,000

2,435,000
5,845,708

350,000
280,000
550,000

1,800,000
6,400,000
6,065,000

| -3.8% $
4 - 4.875Yo

2.76 - 5.4Yo

4.6%
3A%

144,838 -664,050
294,189 - 307,052

185,473 -198,502
238,1 l0

506,679 - 508,580

308,718 -313,240
433,600 - 438,',774

284,520 - 305,590
24,256 -24,350
55,000 - 56,000

175,395
480,000 - 485,000

due July 20 I 0

due May l0,20ll
424,079
109,441

525,790

3.ss - 4.6s%
3 - 4.625Yo

3.6%
3.4%

5.75Yo

5.38%
Variable

19%

10,000,000
6,000,000

500,000
6,000,000

Variable
35s%
35%

3.83%

The 2006 Downtown Streets loan carries an interest rate equal to 63.50/o of the Bank of America prime rate, minus
0.80%. The interest rate on this loan at June 30, 20 l0 was 5.36 Yo. The 2010 V/ater supply interim loan caries an

interest rate of 64%;o of the Bank of American prime rate, plus 0.65%. The interest rate on this loan at June 30,2010
was 0.8722016Yo.The Bank of America prime rate is subject to change on a daily basis.
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Changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2010 are as follows:

Oulslanding
July I,
2009 IssuetVAssumed

Matured./

Redeemed

During Yeør

Oulslnnding
June 30,

2010

Due ll/ithìn
One Year

Governmenlal activílies
Bonds payable:
2004 A&B Retunding
2001 Police station

Notes payable:
2001YMCA
2002 Public V/orks
2003 Civic building
2OO3 OECDD
2004 Land purchase

2005 URA Old School

2005 URA Sports Fields
2005 Sunset Park
2006 URA Streets #l
2006 URA Streets #2

2008 URA Line of credit

Total

B usi ness-lyp e aclivíties

2002 Public Works
2008 Interim water
2008 SDW Water Reservoir
2009 Stella Olsen Culvert
2009 SDW Water Pipeline
2010 Interim Water
SDC Credits

Total

C o mp e ns ated absences p ay able

Govemmental activities
Business-type activities

Total

$$ 4,305,000 $

2,730,000

(4e5,000) $
(l 75,000)

(l 25,000)
(43,846)

(260,000)
(241,023)

(35,000)
(30,000)
( 17,000)

(4e0,000)
(93,218)

(234,763)

3,810,000 $

2,555,000

1,095,000

106,290
850,000

4,50 1,8 l4
140,000

416,000
201,000

1,474,315
5,779,431
7,065,000

495,000
180,000

l3 5,000

45,898
270,000
247,253

35,000
32,000
17,000

98,3 l0
24t,354

7,065,000

1,220,000

714,934
I,t 10,000

4,742,837
175,000

446,000
218,000
490,000

1,567,533

6,0t4,194
6,065,000

(564,798)

1,000,000

$ 29,798,498 $ 43s,202 $ (2,239,850) S 27,993,850 $ 8,861,815

Oalslanding
July 1,

2009 IssuetVAssumed

Matured/
Redeemed

Durìng Year

Oulslnnding
Iune 30,

2010
Due lyithin

One Year

$ $ 564,198

403,748

2,748,808
10,000,000

(164,e44) $

(10,000,000)

(93,969)

399,854 $ 172,662

2t1,079
97302

r 0,000,000

$

10,000,000

5,596,252

477,015

6,000,000
3 83,046

2,748,808
l 0,000,000
1,t47,9251,152,795 (4,870)

$ 17,226,062 S 13,717,354 $ (10,263,783) $ 20,679,633 $ 10,481,043

Outslnnding
July 1,

2009 Issued

Malured/
Redeemed

During Year

Outstønding
June 30,

2010
Due lVithin

One Year

$ 290,144 S

53,352
43,628 $

20,39s
333,772 $

73,7 47

I 33,509
29,499

$

$ 343,496 $ 64,023 $ $ 407,5 19 $ 163,008
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The 2004 A & B Refunding bonds were issued to take advantage of lower interest rates and to reduce the City's
debt service costs on existing debt.

The 2001 Police Station bonds were issued to provide financing for construction on the police station

The 2001 YMCA loan was in connection with the acquisition of property

The 2002 Public Works loan was used to purchase land and a building. The building was remodeled to house

Public Works and to include an indoor recreational facility for public use. The loan is considered a debt of the
govemmental funds because the security is the City's full faith and credit and taxing power. Although the revenue

of the Enterprise funds was not pledged as security for the debt, these funds are contributing toward debt service
payments on the loan. The amounts are budgeted and reported as pa),rnents for debt service in the Enterprise

funds.

The 2003Civic building loan provided funds for construction of the City Hall and library.

The 2003 OECDD loan provided a portion of the funds to construct a new library and City Hall, and fund the first
$1,000,000 of street improvements in Old Town. The 2004 cannery loan is for demolition of the cannery site,

which will be sold for redevelopment by private investors.

The 2004 URA loan was for the sales costs and demolition of the cannery property

The 2005 URA loans were for the acquisition of the Old School and improvements to sports field property

The 2006 URA loans provided the bulk of the funds for reconstruction of downtown streets and fixtures.

The 2008 Water debt was extended in 2010. The new terms call for interest quarterly at a variable rate, with
principal due in full on May 16,2011.

In 2008 the URA obtained a line of credit for $7,065,000. The final $1,000,000 was drawn on the line of credit in
2010 for the Adams Street project. The line of credit is due in full on July 8, 2010.

In 2008 the City obtained a $6,000,000 loan for construction of the water reservoir. The hnal draw on the loan was

completed in fiscal year 2010 for $403,748.

[n2009 the City obtained a $500,000loan for storm drain construction. The final payment is due in 2013-14.

ln 2009 the City obtained a $6,000,000 loan for construction of the water pipeline. During the fiscal year ended

June 30, 2010 the City drew down $2,748,808 of the loan proceeds.

tn fiscal year 2010 the City brought water operations back in house to be managed by City staff. During the
process the loan for the allocation of debt for the Public Works loan was reclassif,red resulting in a transfer of
balances between the Governmental funds and the Enterprise funds. The amount of the transfer was $564,798.

The City will be obtaining additional financing for the water pipeline in fiscal year20ll; at this time the amount

needed is undetermined.

2. Debt service requirements

Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows, assuming full drawdown of the water pipeline loan:
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Ctþ ofShøeood

2001 YMCA Recteslion Centet

Clly of Shøttood

2002 Pub|lc Worhs qnd Fieldhouse

Princþøl Intêrest

$
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$ 416.000 $ 142,603

--

$
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2006 Downtpwn Streeß #1

$

$ 201,000 s 4Ô,262 g 24r,262

---



Total

$

s 7.065.000 $ 21,60ó $ 7,086,606

---
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SDII'll'ater Pipelìne Walet

SDC Credits

Slrcet

SDC Ctedits2009 Tolol busitess tvoe noles
Fiscal Yea¡

Euding

June 30,

2011

2012

2013

2014

201s

2016

20'17

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

202s

2026

2027

2028
2029

2030

Unspecified

10,924,134

1,239,656

1,098,260

1,023,630

941,253

940,947

940,63 I

940,302

939,963

939,612

939,248

938,870

938,480

938,076

937,65',1

937,224

936,'7'75

936,310
935,829

93s,320

1,14'7 ,925

Principal InteÌesl Totol P¡ittcipol P¡ittcipnl

$-$210,000s210,000$-$-
315,790 210,000 s2s,'790

3 t 5,790 210,000 525,790

315,790 210,000 525,790

31s,790 210,000 525,790

315,790 210,000 525,790

315,790 210,000 525,790

315,790 210,000 s25,790

3t5,790 210,000 525,790

315,790 210,000 52s,790

31s,790 210,000 52s,790

31s,790 2t0,000 52s,790

315,790 210,000 525,790

315,790 210,000 525,790

315,790 210,000 525,790

3t5,79A 210,000 525,790

31s,790 210,000 52s,790

315,790 210,000 525,790

31s,790 210,000 s2s,790

315'780 2lo'ooo s25'780- 
s,,z; l,l3*,2o;

Principtl Intercst

s t0,481,043 $ 443,091

815,857 423,799

692,897 405,3ó3

630,821 392,809

558,476 382,777

567,091 373,856

576,013 364,618

585,250 355,052

594,816 345,147

604,722 334,890

614,979 324,269

625,600 313,270

63ó,598 301,882

647,987 290,089

ós9,780 277,877

671,992 26s,232

684,637 252,138

697,731 238,579
711,290 224J39

725,320 210,000

I,147,92s

Tolnl

s

$ ó,000,000 s 4,200,000 $ 10,200,000 s 9,720 s 1,138,205 g 23,930,82s s 6,519,277 S 30,450,102

D. Transfers

Operating transfers on the budgetary basis of accounting were made as follows. In the enterprise funds, transfers to

other funds for debt service were budgeted as debt selvice expenditures, and are reported as such in the individual

fund statements. For fund financial statements presented on the GAAP basis, such transfers have been reported as

transfers.

Transfers In Trsnsfers Oul

General

Asset Depreciation

General Construction
rùy'ater

Sanitary

Storm

Sheet

5 372,367

130,004

49,252

53 8,013

s 49,252

2,986

200,000

35,004

83,401

541,788

l83,l7l

s 1,092,622 s 1,092,622

Transfers are used to (l) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund

that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting

the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and (3) use uffestricted revenues

collected in the general fund to frnance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with

budgetary authorizations.
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V. OTHER INFORMATION

A. Risk management

The City is exposed to various risks ofloss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction ofassets, errors and

omission, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. The City purchases commercial insurance to minimize its
exposure to these risks. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage for any of the past three years.

B. Commitments and contingencies

The City is involved in various claims and legal matters relating to its operations which have all been tendered to

the City's liabitity insurer or are being defended by attomeys. The Cþ does not believe that any of these matters

will have a material impact on its June 30, 2010 financial statements.

C. Pension plan

Plan Descrìption

The City is a participating employer in the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System ("OPERS"), a cost-

sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. The 2003 legislature adopted certain changes in the

Oregon Public Employee Retirement System, and created a new system for all people hired after August 29, 2003.
The Public Employee Retirement System (PERS), which was established under Oregon Revised Statute (ORS)

238.600, applies to all employees who had established membership prior to August 29,2003. The Oregon Public
Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP), which was established under ORS 2384 and went into effect on January l,
2004, applies to all people who are first employed with a public employer after August 29,2003. The Public
Employees Retirement Board (PERB) governs and acts as a conìmon investment and administrative agent for both
plans which are the retirement plans for most public employers in the State of Oregon. Benefits are established by
state statute, and employer contributions are made at the actuarially determined rate for each system as adopted by
the PERB. The Oregon Public Employees Retirement System, a component unit of the State of Oregon, issues a

comprehensive annual financial report, which may be obtained by writing to Public Employees Retirement System,

P.O. Box 23700, Tigard, Oregon 97281-3700.

Both PERS and OPSRP plans provide retirement and disability benefits, post-employment healthcare benefits,

annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.

Funding Stalus

Covered employees are required by state statute to contribute 6.0 percent of their salary to the plan which is
invested in the Individual Account Program (IAP). Employers are permitted to pay employee contributions to the

tund.

The City is required by statute to contribute actuarially computed amounts as determined by OPERS. OPERS

completes an actuarial valuation as of December 31 of odd numbered years for new rates to be implemented July 1

ofthe next odd numbered year. Rates are subject to change as a result of subsequent actuarial valuations and the

proportion of the system that is funded for each local government employer.

For OPSRP, all employers are included in a single pool, with separate rates assigned for police and fire participants

and general service participants. Beginning January 1,2004 OPSRP rates were set at 13.08 percent for police and

fire and 9.47 percent for general service employees. These rates changed to 16.47 percent and 13.20 percent,

respectively, on July 1,2007 based on the December 31,2005 valuation. These rates changed to 11.29 percent and

8.58 percent, respectively, on July 1,2009 based on the December31,2007 valuation.
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Annual Pension Cost

The City paid the following contributions to PERS for the fiscal years ending June 30.

Fiscal Year
2007-2008 2008-2009 2009-2010

Employer Contributions

6% Employee Contributions paid by the City

General Construction Fund

Personal services

Debt Service

Transfers Out

$ 571,668 S

251,008

648,811

280,655

s 522,422

313,921

Total PERS Contributions Paid by the City s 822,676 s 929,4',72 $ 836,343

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

The Cþ has no OPEB liability under GASB 45.

D. GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS ISSUED, NOT YET IN EFFECT

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several pronouncements that have future

effective dates that may impact future financial presentations.

Management has not currently determined what, if any, impact implementation of the following statements may

have on future financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 54 "Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Def,rnitions", issued February,

2009 will be effective for the Cþ beginning with its fiscal year ending June 30, 2011. The Statement establishes

new classifications for fund equity and new definitions for govemmental fund types.

E. OVEREXPENDITURE OF APPROPRIATIONS

Oregon law prohibits expenditures in excess of Council-approved appropriations. The City had the following over-

expenditures ofappropriations during the current year.

$ 15,487

14,999

200,000

Debt Service

Debt Service

Urban Renewal Agency Fund

Personal services 8,042

F. SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

The City adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 165, "Subsequent

Events" (ASC S55). ASC 855 establishes new accounting and disclosure requirements for subsequent events.

Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 79, 2010, the date on which the hnancial

statements were available to be issued. Management is not aware of any subsequent events that require recognition

or disclosure in the hnancial statements.

370
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City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, end Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Actual

o inal nts

Variance from
FinalBudget

- Positive
(Negative)

REVENUE
Taxes

Property
Franchise
Other taxes

Licenses and permits
lntergovernmental

Federal grants
State grants
State shared revenue
County
Other intergovernmental

Charges for services
Building permit fees
Planning
Culture and recreation
Other charges for services

lnfrastructure development fees
SDCs and TIF
Utility connection fees
Project plan review and inspection

Fines, finance charges, and forfeitures
lnterest
Other revenue
Total revenue

EXPENDITURES

Administration
Personal services

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes
Benefits

Materials and services
Professional and technical services
Facility and equipment
Other purchased services
Supplies
Community activities
Minor equipment purchases
Other materials and services

$ 4,091,784
1,464,071

7,500
81,500

259,000
36,200

342,000
703,381
160,322

373,000
99,352

140,000
39,250

1,000
11,000

166,350
496,252

27,OOO

198 710

$ 4,091,784 $
1,464,071

7,500
81,500

259,000
36,200

342,OOO

703,381
160,322

373,000
99,352

140,000
39,250

1,000
11,000

166,350
496,252
27,000

4,035,588 $
1,578,593

3,954
83,009

47,518
6,152

327,830
713,847
219,705

163,287
34,523

210,509
57,419

623
6,011

107,761
347,328

13,855

(56,196)
114,522

(3,546)
1,509

(211,482)
(30,048)
(14,17O)
10,466
59,383

(20e,713)
(64,82e)
70,509
18,169

198 710 27 1.978

(377)
(4,e8e)

(58,58e)
(148,e24)

(13,145)
73,268

8,697 .672 I,697.672 8,229,490 (468,182)

862,942
81,026

298,335

180,660
164,750
481,982

14,730
3,150

55,000
(1,763,775)

862,942
81,026

298,335

180,660
164,750
481,982

14,730
3,150

55,000
(1,763,775)

896,207
88,094

306,424

164,753
143,831
298,989

15,705
2,607

72,277
(1 ,679,431)

(33,265)
(7,068)
(8,08s)

15,907
20,919

182,993
(e75)
543

(17,277)
(84,344)
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Gity of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budqeted Amounts
Original Final

Actual
Amounts

Variance from
FinalBudget

- Positive

Capitaloutlay
lnfrastructure
Furniture and equipment

Debt service
Principal
lnterest

Total expenditures

Community Development
Personal services

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes
Benefìts

Materials and services
Professional and technical services
Facility and equipment
Other purchased services
Supplies
Community activities
Minor equipment purchases
Other materials and services

Total expenditures

Public Safety
Personal services

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes
Benefits

Materials and services
Professional and technical services
Facility and equipment
Other purchased services
Supplies
Community activities
Minor equipment purchases
Other materials and services

Capitaloutlay
lnfrastructure
Vehicles
Furniture and equipment

Total expenditures

834 1,296,834 273 998

$ $ $ 14,045 $
89,020

(14,045)
10,980100,000

92,750
44,260

100,000

92,750
44,260

615,810

92,750
44,259 1

b 't5.810 549.530 66 280

587,328
62,068

190,060

587,328
62,068

190,060

601,936
52,687

207,352

(14,608)
9,381

(17,2e2)

75,626
(4,260)
22,856

'1,304

75
22J06

286,850
4,500

36,112
5,220

150
28,440
96,1 06

286,850
4,500

36,112
5,220

150
28,440
96.1 06

211,224
8,760

13,256
3,916

75
6,334

168,458 (72 .352)
22,836

1,676,878
226,293
603,151

177,O00
85,000
43,040
44,500

2,500
14,500

900,987

1,676,878
226,293
603,151

177,000
85,000
43,040
44,500

2,500
14,500

900,987

1,709,544
1 76,1 83
570,611

173,803
68,435
37,563
34,092
2,175

58,851
864,863

10,000
35,1 01

373

(32,666)
50,1 1 0
32,540

3,1 97
16,565
5,477

10,408
325

(44,351)
36,124

(10,000)
5,259

274,627
347,615

40,360 40,360
275,000 275,000

4,089,209 4,089,209

42
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Gity of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budqeted Amounts Actual
Amountsal Final

Variance from
Final Budget

- Positive
(Negative)

Community Services
Personal services

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes
Beneflts

Materials and services
Professional and technical services
Facility and equipment
Other purchased services
Supplies
Community activities
Minor equipment purchases
Other materials and services

Debt service
Principal
lnterest

Total expenditures

Public Works Operations
Personal services

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes
Benefits

Materials and services
Professional and technical services
Facility and equipment
Other purchased services
Supplies
Community activities
Minor equipment purchases
Other materials and services

Capitaloutlay
I nfra structure
Vehicles
Furniture and equipment

Debt service
Principal
lnterest

Total expenditures

Total expenditures

$ 596,651 $
59,473

181 ,990

65,582
2,500

25,870
132,O75
35,000

3,000
320,225

21,923
3.079

596,651 $
59,473

181 ,990

626É18 $
52,594

199,374

48,122
4,006

14,862
1 18,684
31,866

2,545
318,360

(2s,767)
6,879

(17,384)

1,447,368

65,582
2,500

25,870
132,O75
35,000

3,000
320,225

21,923
3,079

1,447,368 1,441,833

17,460
(1,506)
11,008
13,391
3,134

455
1,865

92321

374,773
55,109

167,390

149,076
447,608

27,972
114,940

10,708
33,800

(488,1 55)

30,000
25,000
27,O00

374,773
55,1 09

167,390

149,076
447,608

27,972
114,940

10,708
33,800

(488,155)

30,000
25,000
27,O00

21,923
3.079

390,375
40,644

't39,156

1 19,199
344,853

11,123
95,707
2,897

14,857
(367,6s1)

15,447

5 535

(15,602)
14,465
28,234

29,877
102,755
16,849
19,233
7,811

18,943
(120,504)

30,000
25,000
11,553

21,923
3,079

21,923
3,079

831 .609 4

8,449,444 7,838,564 610.880
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City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amountsinal Final

Variance from
Final Budget

- Positive
(Negative)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Sale of capital assets
Contingency

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

$ 370,000
(11,500)
135,000

(1,7s2,198)
(1,2e8,6s8)
(1,050,470)

1,050,470
$-

370,000 $
(8e,000)
135,000
714.698)

372,367
(4e,252)

250,000

$ 2,367
39,748

115,000
1,714,698
1,871,813
2,014,511

$

(1,
(1,2e8,698)
(1,050,470)

1 050 70

573,1 15
964,041

898,753 (151,717\
$ 1,862,794 $ 1,862,794
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City of Sherurood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Asset Depreciation Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance from
FinalBudget

- Positive
(Negative)Original Final

REVENUE
Charges for services

Other charges for services
lnfrastructure development fees
lnterest
Other revenue
Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay

I nfrastructure
Buildings

Total expenditures

oTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

Total other flnancing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

$ $ g 27,549 $ 27,549

9,000 9,000 2,534
(57,715)

(6,466)
(57,715)
(36,6s2)9,000 9,000 (27.632\

50,000
50,000

50,000
50,000

(50,000)
50,000

50,000

50,000

130,004 130,004 130,004
130,004 130,004 130,004
89,004 89,004 52,372 (36,632)

326,787 326,787 353,625 26,838

_ejl-5/91_ _$_11_5/91_ _$_105,999_ _$ (erg1l

-45-



Resolution 201 I -0O7, Exhibit A
January 18,201'l
Page 59 of 93

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Urban Renewal AgencY General Fund
Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2010

Actual
Amounts

Variance from
Final Budget

- Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes
Charges for services

Other charges for services
lnterest
Other revenue
Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Personal services

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes
Benefits

Total personal services
Materials and services

Professional and technical services
Facility and equipment
Other purchased services
Supplies
Community activities
Other materials and services

Total materials and services
Capital outlay

Land
lnfrastructure

Total capital outlay
Debt service

Principal
lnterest

Total debt service
Total expenditures

oTHER FTNANCING SOURCES (USES)
lssuance of long-term debt

Total other fìnancing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

$ 2,888,302 $ 2,888,302 $ 3,019,360 $ 131 ,058

50,000
1,200

42,O81
21,603
24,222

3,107,266

116,886
9,866

35,828
162 580

42,O81
(28,3e7)
23 o22

167 764

(6,783)
285

(1,544)
(8,042)

50,000
1,200

2,939,502

1 10,103
1 0,1 51

34,284
154,538

305,000

19,667
2,000

150,000
84.093

560,760

911,000
858,269

1,769,269
11,258,317

110,103
10,151
34,284

154,538

305,000

19,667
2,000

150,000
84,093

560,760

1,769,269
11,258,317

542 840

911,000 91 1 ,016
858,269 723,198

1,634,214
5,089,005

17 920

(16)
135,071
135,055

6,169,312

403,938
6,807

18,708
2,576

27,464
83,347

(e8,e38)
(6,807)

959
(576)

122,536
746

135,000 135,000 577,299 (442,299)
8 638.750 8.638,750 2j72p72 6,466,678

8.77T750 8,773]50 2,749,371 6,024,379

8,500,000 8,500,000 1,000,000 (7,500,000)
- 8500,000 8,500,000 1,000,090 q,?99,999¡

-- 
1S1J85 181,185 (981,739) (1,162'924)

362,561

$ 543 746
2,430,089

-46-
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City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

General Construction Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance from
FinalBudget

- Positive
(Nesative)Original Final

REVENUE
lntergovernmental

Other intergovernmental
I nfrastructure development fees

SDC's and TIF
lnterest
Other revenue
Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Personal services

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes
Benefits

Total personal services
Materials and services

Professional and technical services
Other purchased services
Other materials and services

Total materials and services
Capital outlay

lnfrastructure
Total capital outlay
Debt service

Principal
lnterest

Total debt service
Total expenditures

oTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

Transfers out
Total other flnancing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

$ 519,870 $ 519,870 $ 291 ,317 $ (228,553)

270,000
1,650

30,000
821,520

24,188
2,571
7 707

34,466

151

28 584
28 735

322

270,000
1,650

124,903
4,700

18,249
821 520 439,169

30 000

24,188
2,571
7,707

34,466

62,500
151

28 584

34,902
2,888

12 163

(1O,714)
(317)

(4,456)

49,953 (15,487)

200
36,399

62,500
(4e)

(7,815)

91 235 36.599 54 636

322 772 865.772
772 865 772 521,989

521,989
343 783
343 783

(14,gee)
(14,e99)
367 933

(3e,748)
(200,000)
(239,748)
(254,166)

858,941

522,250
17,050

539,300
925,273

11,500 89,000 49,252

11 500 89.000
(e2,253) (620,253)

(200,000)
(150,748)
(874,419)

959,507100,566
$ 8,313

100
$ 85,089 $ 604,775
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City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Debt Service Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budqeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance from
FinalBudget

- Positive

Original Final (Neqative

REVENUE
Taxes

Property
lnterest
Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Debt service

Principal
lnterest

Total expenditures

Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

$ 916,700
2,000

918,700

$ 916,779 $
824

$ 916,700
2,000

79
(1,176)

918.700 917,603 (1.0971

670,000 670,000 670,000
265 700 265 700 266 070 (370)

935 700 935 700 936 070 t370)

Net change in fund balances (17,000)

17,543
$ 543

(17,000) (18,467) (1,467)

17,543 27,999 10,459

_a-91g- -$-9, 532- -$-19q9-
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City of Shen¡vood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual - on Budgetary Basis
Water Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance from
Final Budget

- Positive
(Negative)Original Final

REVENUE
lntergovernmental

Other intergovernmental
Charges for services

Utility charges for services
Other charges for services

lnfrastructure development fees
SDC's and TIF
Utility connection fees
Project plan review and inspection

lnterest
Other revenue
Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Operations

Personal services
Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes
Benefits

Materials and services
Professional and technical services
Facility and equipment
Other purchased services
Supplies
Minor equipment purchases
Other materials and services

Capitaloutlay
Vehicles
Furniture and equipment

Debt service
Principal
lnterest

Total expenditures

$ 2,000,000 $ 2,000,000 $

470,398 470,398

7,O27,210 7,O27,210

4,285,212
1,600

250,000
20,000

4,285,212
1,600

250,000
20,000

3,771,112
2,443

113,258
6,850

68
56,529

1,152,492
5,102,752

$ (2,000,000)

(514,100)
843

(136,742)
(1 3,1 50)

68
(413,869)

1,152,492
(1,924,458)

393,018
51,823

161,716

571,472
142,440
337,721
137,428
39,000

210,934

15,000
6,000

221,440
457 244

2 745 236

452,618
51,823

161,716

450,991
44,922

168,043

763,282
93,516

284,628
82,576
'10,583

219,617

4,995

1,627
6,901

(6,327)

15,000
1,005

179,682

740,472
161,440
345,121
137,428
39,000

210,934

(22,81O)
67,924
60,493
54,852
28,417
(8,683)

15,000
6,000

221,440
457,244

3,000,236

41,758
217,398

2,382,309
239 846
617,927
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City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual - on Budgetary Basis
Water Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Actual
AmountsOriginal Final

Variance from
Final Budget

- Positive
(Negative)

Capital
Personal services

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes
Benefits

Materials and services
Professional and technical services
Facility and equipment
Other purchased services
Supplies
Minor equipment purchases
Other materials and services

Capitaloutlay
Land
I nfrastructure

Debt service
Principal
lnterest
Other

Total expenditures

Total expenditures before reimbursements

orHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
lssuance of long-term debt

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

19 938 562 19,938,562 7,310,254 12,628,308

93822,683,798 22 798 9,692,563

$ 89,9s0 $
10,604
29,783

1,267

48,277

89,950 $
10,604
29,783

1,267

48,277

45j62 $
3,661

14,633

44,788
6,943

1 5,1 50

(7,0e5,341)
(e,881)

(14,434)
(21,547)

(1,15e)
27,781

(17,634)
9,758,681

10,000,000
(63,53e)

(1,500)

9,758,681

10,000,000

9,758,681

'10,000,000

7,095,341
9,881

15,701
21,547

1,159
20,496

17,634

63,539
1,500

210,013
(365,004)

16,000,000
15,845,009

210,O13
(36s,004)

16,000,000

538,013
(35,004)

3,152,556

328,000
330,000

(12,847,444)

188,421

7,659,790 7,659,790
$ 7,848,211 $ 7,593,211

15,845,009 3,655,565 (12,189,444)
(66,579) (934,246)

8,705,626

(867,667)

1,045,836
$ 178,169$ 7,771,380
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City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual - on Budgetary Basis
Sanitary Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budqeted Amounts
Original Final

Actual
Amounts

Variance from
Final Budget

- Positive
(Negative)

REVENUE
lntergovernmental

Other intergovernmental
Charges for services

Utility charges for services
Other charges for services

I nfrastructure development fees
SDC's and TIF
Project plan review and inspection

lnterest
Other revenue
Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Operations

Personal services
Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes
Benefits

Materials and services
Professional and technical services
Facili$ and equipment
Other purchased services
Supplies
Minor equipment purchases
Other materials and services

Capital outlay
Furniture and equipment

Debt service
Principal
lnterest

Total expenditures

.565 1,448,565 555,282

$ 737,260 $

487,105

200,000
1,000

23,200

737,260 $

487,1 05

200,000
1,000

23,200

455,693
647

8,159
172

25,068
65,543

$ (737,260)

(31,412)
647

(1e1 ,841)
(828)

1,868
65,543

1,448 (893,283)

45,780
23,640
42,905
12,104
9,580

63,1 68

35,581
12,121

(7e,356)
4,628
7j36

12,406

117,697
15,279
43,309

8,000

33,406
4 692

117,697
15,279
43,309

101 ,490
10,805
31,561

1 0,1 99
1 1 ,519

122,261
7,476
2,444

50,762

7,600

39,670
5,571

419,560 401.358

16,207
4,474

11,748

400

(6,264)
(87e)

18,202

45,780
23,640
42,905
12,104
9,580

63,168

8,000

33,406
4,692

- 51 -



Resolution 20'l 1 -O07, Exhibit A
January 18,2011
Page 67 of 93

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes ¡n Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual - on Budgetary Basis
Sanitary Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance from
FinalBudget

- Positive
(Negative)Original Final

Capital
Personal services

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes
Benefits

Materials and services
Professional and technical services
Facility and equipment
Other purchased services
Olher materials and services

Capitaloutlay
I nfrastructure

Total expenditures

Total expenditures

oTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

92,971 $
9,718

31,911

92,971 $
9,718

31,911

73,494 $
6,147

17,398

$

259
1 10,834

259
1 10,834

342,O82
2,756

12,093
76,039

19,477
3,571

14,513

(342,O82)
(2,756\

(11,834)
34,795

406,217 406,217 406,217
121,901651 910 651 910 530,009

1,O71,470 1,071,470 931,367 1 40,1 03

(145,421) (83,407) 62,014
(145,421\ (83,4071 62,014

(145,421)
(145,421)
231,674 231,674

4j61,440 4,161,440
$ 4,393,114 $ 4,393,114 $ 3,797,477

(45e,4e2)

4,256,969
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City of Sheruvood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual - on Budgetary Basis
Storm Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance from
Final Budget

- Positive
(Negative)Original Final

REVENUE
Charges for services

Utility charges for services
lnfrastructure development fees

SDC's and TIF
Utility connection fees
Project plan review and inspection

lnterest
Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Operations

Personal services
Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes
Benefits

Materials and services
Professional and technical services
Facility and equipment
Other purchased services
Supplies
Minor equipment purchases
Other materials and services

Debt service
Principal
lnterest
Other

Total expenditures Operations

$ 1,350,103 $ 1,350,103 $ 1,330,431 $

13,263

(le,672)

150,000
2,000

500

150,000
2,000

500 172
3,982

(136,737)
(2,000)

(328)
(7,748)11 730 11 730

1,514,333 1,514,333 1,347,848 (166,485)

204,398
30,673
76,143

137,876
24,312
97,309
21,104

6,700
109,701

135,776
22,',t68

204,398
30,673
76,143

137,876
24,312
97,309
21,104

6,700
109,701

135,776
22,168

144,238
17,704
44,719

97,675
12,746
77,181
15,721

75,476

60,1 60
12,969
31,424

40,201
11,566
20,128

5,383
6,700

34,225

135,728
21,335

5,684

48
833

(5,684)

866,160 866,160 648,207 217,953
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City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual - on Budgetary Basis
Storm Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budqeted Amounts

Capital
Personal services

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes
Benefìts

Materials and services
Professional and technical services
Facility and equipment
Other purchased services
Other materials and services

Capitaloutlay
lnfrastructure

Total expenditures Capital

Total expenditures

orHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

Original Final

$ 72,703 $
7,647

24,116

72,703 $
7,647

24,116

13,675 $
1j43
2,941

259
86,301

259
86,301

13.580

46,010
945

1 ,133
13,673

Actual
Amounts

Variance from
Final Budget

- Positive
(Negative)

59,028
6,504

21,175

(46,010)
(e45)
(874)

72,628

13,580 13,580

204,606 204,606 79,520 125,086

1,070,766 1,070,766 727,727 343,039

(475.421\ (66,367)
(66,367)
110,187

480,357
$ 590,544

(475,421)
(31,854)

69 727
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City of Shenrood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual - on Budgetary Basis
Street Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance from
Final Budget

- Positive
Final

REVENUE
lntergovernmental

State shared revenue
County
Other intergovernmental

Charges for services
Utility charges for services
Other charges for services

I nfrastructure development fees
SDC's and TIF
Project plan review and inspection

lnterest
Other revenue
Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Operations

Personal services
Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes
Benefits

Materials and services
Professional and technical services
Facility and equipment
Other purchased services
Supplies
Minor equipment purchases
Other materials and services

Capitaloutlay
lnfrastructure
Furniture and equipment

Debt service
Principal
lnterest

Total expenditures Operations

356,000 356,000

$ 675,000 $
65,000

1,138,750

550,000
500

79,000

675,000
65,000

1,138,750

550,000
500

79,000

$ 683,623 $
65,484

1,000,000

311,009
2,157

301,935
110

49,896
2,229

8,623
484

(138,750)

(44,5e1)
2,157

(248,065)
(3e0)

(2s,104)
2,229

50 2,864,250 2,416,443 (447,807)

144,994
24,268
52,575

26,544
321,758

14,780
51,066

4,500
77,819

228,O00
35,000

144,994
24,268
52,575

101,544
321,758
24,780
51,066

4,500
77,819

228,O00
35,000

142,O93
16,513
48,389

53,821
302,787
24,367
50,1 08

62,568

256,701

2,901
7,755
4,186

47,723
18,971

413
958

4,500
15,251

(28,701)
35,000

79,340 79,340
11 142 11 142

1,071,786 1,156,786

582
278

37
5

75841

151 817
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City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Ghanges in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual - on Budgetary Basis
Street Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budqeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance from
Final Budget

- Positive
(Negative)Original Final

Capital
Personal services

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes
Benefits

Materials and services
Professional and technical services
Facility and equipment
Other purchased services
Other materials and services

Capitaloutlay
I nfrastructure

Total expenditures Capital

Total expenditures

oTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

4,894,750 4,979.750 1,511,269 3,468,481

$ 103,848 $
10,968
32,587

103,848 $
10,968
32,587

57,587 $
4,788

17,885

46,261
6,180

14,702

359,075
2,318
6,603

54,542

3,502

(35e,07s)
(2,318)
(6,344)

67,873
259

122,415

3,552,887

259
122,415

3,552,887
3,822,9643, 822.964 506,300

3,549,385
3,316,664

395,000
(119,171)
275,829

(1,754,671)

3,651,906
$ 1,897,235

395,000
(119,171)
275,829

(1 ,83e,671)

2,986 (392,014)
(183,171) (64,000)
(180,185) (456,014)
724,989 2,564,660

3,651,906 4,893,590 1,241,684

$ 1,812,235 $ 5,618,579 $ 3,806,344

--:
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City of Shenvood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Telecommunications Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance from
Final Budget

- Positive
(Negative)Original Final

REVENUE
lntergovernmental

Other intergovernmental
Charges for services

Utility charges for services
Other charges for services

lnterest
Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Personal services

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes
Benefits

Total personal services
Materials and services

Professional and technical services
Facility and equipment
Other purchased services
Supplies
Minor equipment purchases
Other materials and services

Total materials and services
Capital outlay

lnfrastructure
Furniture and equipment

Total capital outlay
Total expenditures

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

$

325,000 325,000

12,0OO $ 12,000$

183,351
3,448

229

(141,649)
3,448

229
325,000 325,000 o28 (125,972)

62,390
5,998

22,464
90,852

15,000
20,000
50,979
15,000

62,390
5,998

22,464
90 .852

15,000
20,000
50,979
15,000

12,504
1 ,101
3,604

17,209

31,874
42,003
43,163

63
7,235
4,561

128,899

22,010

49,886
4,897

18,860
73,643

(16,874)
(22,003)

7,816
14,937
(7,235)
28,924

5 565

77,990
15,000
92,990

172.198

33,485 33,485
134,464

100,000
15,000

1 15,000
340,316

134 464

100,000
15.000

1 15,000
340.316

22,010
168,118

(15,316)

35,558
$ 20,242

(15,316)

35,558
$ 20,242

30,910

25,342
$ 56,252 $36 .010
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City of Sherwood

Tnx Yeør

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Property Tax Transactions and Balances

June 30, 2010

2009-10

2008-09

2007-08

2006-07

2005-06

2004-05

Prior Years

148,803

40,089

14,549

3,909

1,643

2,534

$

Uncollecled
Bnlances

July I, 2009

2009-2010
Lew

Inleresl,
Discounts &
Atljuslmenls

$ (142,886)

(2, l 50)

(106)

867

295

(3 l4)

(305)

Turnovers

Uncollecled
Balances

,lune 30,2010

$ 5,1 13,308 (4,827,878) $

(93,1I l)

(19,728)

(10,256)

(3,035)

(224)

(357)

142,545

53,542

20,256

5,l6l

1,170

1,105

1,872

$

Total $ 21 1,528 $ 5,1 13,308 $ (144,599) $ (4,954,587) $ 225,6s0

Urban Renewal Agency

Tax Year

Uncollectetl
Balønces

July I,2009
2009-2010

Lew

Intercst,
Discounts &
Atljustments

$ (87,305)

(t,224)

(s6)

377

95

(78)

281

Turnovers

Uncollected
Balances

June 30,2010

2009-10

2008-09

2007-08

2006-07

2005-06

2004-0s

Prior Years

s 3,124,291 (2,949,890) $

(53,004)

(10,457)

(4,4s6)

(e72)

(56)

(7 4)

$ $ 87,096

3 0,480

t0,737

2,242

375

275

388

84,708

21,251

6,321

1,252

409

181

Total $ r l4,l2r $ 3,124,291 $ (87,91 l) $ (3,018,909) $ 13 1,593
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STATISTICAL SECTION



City of Sherwood, Oregon
Govemmentryide Expenses by Function

Last Five Fiscal Yearc

lnterest on
Long-term

Debt Water Sanitary Telecom Total
Business-tyBe Activitles

Storm

$671,150
659,026
699i162
903,635
788,000

3Fd
@)al,oko{< c6<+
sä3
s'B Ë

óo
.\¡
mx
ËFiscal

Year
Ended

June 30

2019
2009
2008
2AA7
2006

Opera-
tions (a)

$ 6,815,712
6,517,446
6,892,119
5,827,053
4,452,000

Development
Serviees (b)

$ 1,514,4V?
1,705,761
1,756,888
1,819;811
1,371,000

Admin-
istration rcl

$ 4,39ô,849
3,355,687
2,415,467
2,053,032

164,000

$ 1,131,451
I,548,302
2,432,2ß3

425,622
685,000

$ 2,682,923
2,880,009
2,134,630
2,090,399
2,078,000

$ 463,918
526,200

1,833247
2,660,082
2"915,000

Street

$2,834,235
2,444.$V8
1,8A7,737
3,870,061
3,585,0!0

$207,628
320,854
500,580
244,85,V
268,000

$ 20,718,338
20,357,963
20,472,113
19,894,552
16,306,000

(a) Operations includes Police, Library, and Public Works Operations'

(b) Development SeMces includes Planning, Building, and Engineering'

(c) Admlnistration includes Çouncil and Recorder, Administration, F¡nance, CommUnity Services, and the URA'
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Gity of Sherwood, Oregon
Goverhment-wide Revenues

Last Five Fiscal Years

Revenues General Revenues
Taxes lnfrastrueture

for Grants and Grants and & Franchise lnter- development

Services Contributions Goñtributiqns Fees governmental fees. lnterest Other

J E-d
@¿øoko
d€F
sË3
E'B H

oo
_-.¡

mx
=g

Fiscal
Year

Ended
June 30

2019
2009
2008
2007
2006

97,42ß,952
6,763,146
6,327,710
7,450,509
6,,254,368

s 2,942,611
2,776,312
1,'158,996
2,375,635

218,AA7

$ 2,582,738
4,734,297
1,032,967
1,502,969

$ 9,653,803
8,918,148
9,573,296
7Í64,661
5,634,186

$ 326,799
364,44V

2,429,457
855,07',l

2327,419.

1,220264
341,623

3,644,475
453,7e0

4,CI07,4:25

8 179,218
370,922

1,610,578
1,490,329
1,206245

$ 196',290

(33,213)
(15,166)

1t122,205

Total

g%,528,6V5

ç24,264,855
ç24,744,286
921,8V7,798
$ 20,769,055
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Fiscal
Year

Ended

rations
mmunity

Police Services

CitY of Sherwood, Oregon
General Governmental Expenditures by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

ntal
Less

Development Adminis- Services and Ser- Capital Debt Reim-

Services tration (c) vices (c) Outlay Service bursements Total

--- --

J b-d.D)Øoko
{i c{<=
sË9
3's ì

oo
.\¡
mx
z.

=
June 30 Ooerations

$ 3 741,593
3,841,057
3,774,378
2,741,O87
2,692,237
2,706,412
2,036,534
1,874J66
1,835,374
1,784,477

$ 852,5s2
737,027
820,622

't,292,305
911,386

'1 ,1 19,919
1,053,059

798,565
980,1 1 3

31 3,1 76

$ 1 958,767
1,846,610
2,404,O42
1,503,968
1,286,88'1

1 ,579,1 1 I
1,627,279
1,349,314
1,228,413
1,352,68'1

$ 3,769,764 $
2,840,300
1,672,916
3,109,356
2,532,157
5,647,632
3,463,473
2,009,1 93
I,880,809
2,038,765

$ $

212,669 864,538

75,054
214,351

2004

$ 3,311,595
3,854,963
3,320,845
2,540,807

938,278
1,714,847

977,726
974,O24

1,148,349
878,460

1,245,328
1,216j83
1,046,200
1,052,971
1 , 

'156,439

2002

$ 15,076,475
14,540,746
13,337,90'1
12,O08,267
7,610,122

12,334,370
8,645,987
6,346,096
7,590,467
7,012,260

$
2010 (c, ¿)

2009 (c, o)

2008 1c, o¡

2OO7 (c)

2006 tal
2005 (a)

2OO4 (a't

2003 1a¡

2002 þ)
2001 (u)

$ 1,442,224
1,420,789
1,345,098

988,865
465,366
612,641
540,887
497,273
442,355
430,350

This schedule includes the following funds
2010 2006 2005 2003 2001

2009 2008 2007

General
Debt Service
URA
General Construction
Special revenue:

Asset Depreciation
Public Works
Gapital EquiPment
Building DePreciation
Robin Hood Theater
State Revenue Sharing

Special Grants

inistration includes Council and Recorder,

es to other funds for costs incurred on their behalf'

Rentalfundsrecordedpurchaseofcapitalitemsandminorcapitalprojects'
ossible to determine and exclude the exact amount'

inistration includes Council and Recorder,

r funds for costs incurred on their behalf.

lion.
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City of Sherwood, Oregon
General Governmental Revenue by Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years

J Ê-d
@)_Øoko
{ï c@<+
sË3
Esì
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mx
=o
=

Fiscal
Year

Ended
June 30

Property
Taxes

$ 7,975,681
7,366,025
7,231 ,552
6,502,468
5,634,186
5,009,571
4,640,853
4,324,965
3,894,344
3,046,562

Franchise
Fees

Licenses
and

Permits

$ 83,00e
82,359
89,669
96,208
79,245
62,433
54,147
60,995
57,837
52,152

2009

lntergovern-
mental

$l,606,369
417,679

1 ,376,518
2,458,024
1,702j73
1,640,397
1 ,018,556

665,300
587,113
563,679

Charges
for

Services

$ 736,809
852,203

1,089,223
961 ,420
800,552

1 ,293,190
905,506
681 ,014
579,850
820,967

lnfrastructure
Development

Fees

$ 239,299
1,049,026

407.344
602,458
150,685
349.648
266,300
307,515
173 613
303,821

Fines,
Finance

Charges &
Forfeitures

$ 347,328
454,802
390,651
532,392
466,995
423,853
348,406
267,350
208,087
192,332

Taxes

lnterest Other

$ 43,515 $ 55,291

132,931 310,963
234,162 87,493
227,162 19,014
98,767 187,286
56,320 334,322
41,754 182,803
40,816 '187,626
70,314 309,486

169,242 328,997

2004 2003

$ 12,665,894
$ 12,058,518
$ 12,255,263

$ 12,649,555
$ 10,21 1 ,786
$ 10,146,843
$ 8,161,776
$ 7,229,736
$ 6,478,478
$ 5,935,729

Total

2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003
2002
2001

$ 1,578,593
1,392,530
I,348,651
1,250,409
1,091,898

977,111
703,451
694,1 55
597,834
457,977

This schedule includes the followlng funds:
2010

General
Debt Service
URA
General Construction
Special revenue:

Asset Depreciation
Public Works
Capital Equipment
Building Depreciation
Robin Hood Theater
State Revenue Sharing
Special Grants

2008 2007 2006 2005 2002 2001
x
x

x
x
X

x
x
x

X

X

X

x

x

x
x
x

x

x
X

x
X

x

X

x
X

X

x

x
x
x
x

x

X

X

X

x

x

x
x
X

x

x
x
X

x
x
X

x

x
x
x
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2010
2009
2008
2þO7
2006
2005
20Q4:

2003
2002
2001

Gity of Sherwood, Oregon
General Governmental Fund Balance

Last Ten Fiscal Years

$'1,862,794
898,753
3l:2,774

(e00,143)
(1,332,856)

371,003
1,478,838
1,895,059
1,290,676

396,878

$ 405,998
353,625
293,942
186,158
178,580
148,737
121,111
129,900

î 4,',t74,326
5,032,533
2,68ô,041
1,616,787
1,276,499

519,740
1,599,949
2,154,859
1,290,676

396,878



City of Sherwood, Oregon
Property Tax Levies and Gollections

Last Six Fiscal Years
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Fiscal Year
Ended

June 30

City of Sherwood
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005

Current Tax
Collections

Percent of
Current Taxes

Collected

Delinquent
Tax

Collections

Total
Tax

Collections

$ 4,970,764
4,815,529
4,866,764
4,663,650
4,392,791
4,100,952

Ratio of
Total Tax

Collections to
Total Tax Levy

Outstanding
Delinquent

Taxes

Ratio of
Delinquent

Taxes to
Total Tax Levv

Taxes
Levied

$ 5,'l I 3,308
4,869,072
4,887,020
4,668,811
4,393,961
4,102,057

79,631
88,380
83,812
58,858
51,538

3,037,195
2,741,292
2,579,769
2,026,231
1,406,809

990,306

97.2o/o

98.9o/o

99.6%
99.9%
100.0%
97.jYo

2.8%
1.1To

0.4%
0j%
0.0%
0.0o/o

2.8%
1j%
0.4%
0.1o/o

0.0%
0.0%

97.2o/o

98.9%
99.6%
99.9%
99.97%
99.97%

s 142,544
53,543
20,256

5,'161
1,170
1,105

87,096
30,480
10,737
2,242

375
275

Sherwood Urban Renewal AgencY:
2010 3,124,291
2009 2,771,772
2008 2,590,506
2007 2,028,473
2006 1,407,184
2oo5 1,021,381

s 4,970,764
4,720,268
4,725,549
4,483,423
4,217,619
3,893,968

3,037,195
2,661,661
2,49'1,389
1,942,419
1,347,951

969,568

97.ZVo

96.9%
96.7o/o

96.0%
96.0%
94.9%

97.2o/o

96.0%
96.2%o

95.8%
95.8%
94.9o/o

95,261
141,215
180,227
175,172
206,984

$

Source. Washington County Assessment and Taxation
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GitY of Shenrvood, Oregon
Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Fiscal
Year

Ended
June 30

Real Prooertv

Personal ProPerty,

Manufactured Homes,

Value Actual Value

and Utilitv Total

ffi Assessed Estimated
Actual Value

Ratio of Total
Assessed

Value to Total
Estimated

Actual Value (u)

Estimated
Actual
Value

oer Caoita

URA
Assessed
Value (a)

2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003
2002
2001

Assessed
Value

$ 1,340,834,750
1,291 ,402,080
1,232,396,640
1,158,876,970
1,057,361,030

955,663,760
872,433,320
801 ,554,900
730,651,860
649,471,070

Estimated
Actual Value

s 2,204,748,25O
2,399,708,430
2,371,145,540
2,110,761,912
1,626,376,634
1,369,120,014
1,228,726,972
1 ,100,444,363

997,776,310
899,209,455

$ 93,873,573
80,382,741
75,704,328
70,374,662
70,294,192
58,933,592
61,015,437
59,590,694
58,511,043
51,405,530

$ 94,494,503
80,976,084
76,s07,685
70,909,587
70,584,237
59,074,481
61 ,159,215
59,790,611
59,184,891
55,287,055

Value

$ 1,434,708,323
1,371,784,821
1 ,308,100,968
1,229,251 ,632
1,127 ,655,222
1,014,597,352

933,448,757
861 ,145,594
789,162,903
700,876,600

$ 2,299,242,753
2,480,684,514
2,447,653,225
2,181,671,499
1,696,960,871
1,428,194,495
1 ,289,886, 187

1,160,234,974
1,056,961,201

954,496,510

$ 138 176
151 ,077
149,566
135,381
113,585
100,648
91,807
84,812
82,318
88,257

$ 162,832,828
122,130,330
122,'130,330
122,130,330
82,828,438
59,009,371
46,812,M5
38,462,668
17,753,313

62.4%
55.3%
53¿%
56.3%
66.5%
71.0%
72.4%
74.2%
74.7To
73.4%

1a) The city of shenrvood urban Renewa operations on July 1, 2001. The amount shown as URA assessed value

is the portion of the total assessed va RA. Tax revenue on th¡s value is restrìcted to urban renewal act¡vities.

(u) Ballot Measure 50, implemented in th e 30, 1998, limited assessed value'

Source: Washington County Assessment and Taxation
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Gity of Sherwood, Oregon
ProPertY Tax Rates

Direct and Overlapping Governments
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Washington CountY and Other
Governmental Entities
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Fiscal
Year

Ended
June 30

Operating
Millaoe (a)

Citv of Sherwood

Debt
Service

Millaqe (b)
Operating
Millaoe (a)

Debt
Service

Millaqe lb)
Operating
Millaqe (a)

Education

Debt
Service

Millaoe (b)

Total
Education

Millaoe

Total
City

Millaqe

Total
County
Millaqe Total

201 0 (c)

2009 (c)

2008 (c)

2007 (c)

2006 (c)

2005 (c)

2004 (c)

2003 (ct

2002
2001

$ 2.9233
2.9428
2.9574
2.9699
3.0553
3.1 058
3.1322
3.1 503
3.2975
3.2975

$ 0.6390
0.5964
0.7652
0.8074
0.83 1 5

0.8450
1.0638
1.2295
1.4211
1.0944

$ 3.5623
3.5392
3.7226
3.7773
3.8868
3.9508
4.1960
4.3798
4.7186
4.3919

$ 6.4159
6.2872
6.2681
5.4245
5.4766
5.3227
5.25 1 0

5.2019
4.6376
3.9391

$ 0.6134
0.5322
0.6343
0.4723
0.5291
0.5474
0.5610
0.5733
0.6841
0.7226

$ 7.0293
6.8194
6.9024
5.8968
6.0057
5.8701
5.8120
5.7752
5.3217
4.6617

$ 4.6534
4.6844
4.7077
4.7276
4.8636
4.9438
4.9858
5.0146
5.2489
5.2489

$ 3.9537
3.7533
3.8792
2.2182
2.2465
2.5581
2.6082
2,6393
2.8995
2.7897

$ 8.6071
8.4377
8.5869
6.9458
7.1101
7.5019
7.5940
7.6539
8.1484
8.0386

$ 19.1987
18.7963
19.2119
'16.6199

17.0026
173228
17.6020
17.8089
18.1887
17.0922

(a) This is the permanent rate, which funds general operations. Permanent rates were fixed by the state in 1997 when property tax limitation

measures were approved by the voters. 
-No 

action of the City can increase the permanent rate from 3'2975'

1u¡ Debt servic 
- -tr' -'- - t 

eneral obligation bonds. The City may levy whatever rate is needed

to PaY debt nds'

(c) The city of s given those property taxes attributable to the urban Renewal District which are in excess

of the asse June 30, 2001. To the extent that these taxes would otherwise have gone to the City of'

Sherwood, the City's permanent rate reflects the reduction in taxes remitted to the City.

Source: Washington County Assessment and Taxation
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Resolution 201 1 -007, Exhibit A

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Princfpal Taxpayers

Last Seven Fiscal Years

Portland General Electric
Jae Oregon, lnc
Northwest Nâtural Gas Company
Argyle CapitalLLC
Lumber Products
Retail Property Partners
Mittleman Properties
Target Corporation
Verizon Communications
Bir Sunfield LLG

Utility
Manufacturing
Utility
Fiduciary
Manufacturing
Commercial
Real Estate
Retail
Utility
Real Estate

$ 28,217,000
26,728,170
25,707,730
23,999,450
22,977,365
16,900,160
16,997,910
14,988,297
14,822,500

2.íe/o

2.4o/o

2,3o/o

2.19/o

2.00/o

1.5o/o

1.5%
1.3o/o

1.3o/o

12o/o

Source: Washington County Assessment and Taxation



Resolution 2Af -ÛAV, Exh¡bit A
January 18,2011
Page 84 of 93

Gity of Sherwood, Oregon
Computâtion of Legal Debt Margin

June 30, 2010

Total assessed valuè

Debt limitation: 3% of total assessed value
Debt applicable to limitation:

General obligation bonds outstanding
Less amount availaþle for repayment of general obligation bonds

Total debt applicable to limitation
Legal debt margÍn



Gity of Sherwood, Oregon
Ratio of Debt to Assessed Value and Debt per Capita

Lasl Ten Fiscal Years

rltsÐo!90.Þ2Øohq
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Fiscal
Year

Ended
June 30

Popu-
lation

Bonded
Debt (a)

Less Debt
Service

Fund

Net
Bonded

Debt

$ 6,355,468
7,007,001
7,547,611
8,240,'167
8,979,010
9,453,144

10,017,812
10,008,893
10,589,233
10,469,348

Bonded
Debt

Net
Bonded

Debl

Ratio of Debt
lo Assessed Value

Net
Debt oer Caoita

Assessed
Value

$ 1,434,708,323
1,371,784,821
1,308,100,968
1,229,251,632
1,127,655,222
1,014,597,352

933,448,757
861,145,594
789,1 62,903
700,876,600

Notes
Pavable (b)

$ 4'r ,'r 60,560
38,836,766
28,355,164
29,921,293
23,041,868
11,12't,',t97
11,838,171
6,096,144
2,03't,329
1,567,212

Total
Debt

$47,516,028
45,843,767
35,902,775
38,161,460
32,O20,878
20,574,341
2l,855,983
16,1 05,037
12,620,562
12,036,560

3.3% $
33%
2.7%
3.1o/o

2.8%
2.Oo/o

2.3%
1.9%
1.6%
1.7%

Total
Debt

381 $ 2,845
421 2,755
460 2,187
504 2,332
557 1,987
633 1,377
706 1,540
712 1,146
774 923
815 937

Total
Debt

2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003
2002
2001

16,700
't6,640
't6,420
16,365
16,115
14,940
14,1 90
14,050
13,ô80
12,840

$ 6,365,000
7,035,000
7,690,000
8,345,000
8,990,000
9,505,000

1 0,1 60,000
10,140,000
10,590,000
10,975,000

$ 9,532
27,999

142,389
104,833

10,990
51,856

142,188
131,107

767
505,652

0.4%
0.5%
0.6%
o.7%
o.8%
0.9%
1 .1o/o

1.2Yo

1.3o/o

1.5o/o

(a) Bancroft (special assessment) bonds, outstanding in the year ended 1995, are excluded.
All bonded debt is general obligation debt, and not subject to the limitations on property tax imposed by Measure 50,

(b) Notes payable are being repa¡d from specific sources, including rent of buildings, parks system development charges, and

Urban Renewal Agency property tax increment revenue. All notes are full faith and credit obligations of the City.
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City of Sherwood, Oregon
Ratio of Debt Service Expenditures to General Governmental Expenditures

Last Eight Fiscal Years

Notes Pavable lb)Fiscal Bonded Debt ral

Year Total
Ended Debt

June 30 Principal lnterest Service

J b-d
@¿@okq
o< c6<É
sâ3
õ3s

oo
-{
mx
=ET

Princioal lnterest

Total
Debt

Service

Total
Debt

Service
Bonded

Debt
Total
Debt

Total
General

Governmental
Expenditures (c)

Ratio of Debt Service to
General Government

Exoenditures rcl

2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003

$ 2,876,340
2,769,390
2,699,142
2,343,851
1,780,898
1,199,216

727,936
425,849

$3,812,410
3,707,891
3,655,281
3,306,090
2,719,128
2,141,962
1,705,663
1,399,873

$ 15,076,475
14,540,746
13,337,901
12,008,267
7,610,122

12,334,370
8,645,987
6,346,096

$ 670,000
655,000
655,000
645,000
595,000
575,000
575,000
450,000

$ 266,070
283,501
301,139
317,239
343,230
367,746
402,727
524,024

$ 936,070
938,501
956,1 39

962,239
938,230
942,746
977,727
974,024

$1,734,792
1,674,606
1,565,945
1,325,761
1,209,368
716,493
453,681
268,1 85

1 ,141,548
1,094,784
1,133,197
1 ,018,090

571,530
482,723
274,255
157,664

6.2o/o

6.5%
7.2%
8.0%

123%
7.6Yo

11.3o/o

153%

25.3o/o

25.5%
27.4o/o

27.5%
35.7%
17.4%
19.7%
22j%

(a) All bonded debt is general obligation debt, and not subject to the limitations on property tax imposed by Measure 50.
(b) Notes payable are being repaid from specific sources, including rent of buildings, parks system development charges, and

Urban Renewal Agency property tax increment revenue. All notes are full faith and credit obligations of the City.
(c) For the funds included in General Governmental Expenditures, please refer to the schedule titled "General Governmental Expenditures

by Function", also in this Statistical Section.
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City of Shetwood, Orcgon
Gomputation of Þirect and Overlapping Bonded Debt

GenEral Obligation Bonds
June 30, 2010
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Þ

Net General
Obligation

Bonded Debt
Outstandinq

1,730,550
306,777

3,073,399
858,799

1,033,251

Percentage
Applicable
to City of
Sherwood

1.09o/o

'1.19%
1.37%
3.30%
3.71Yo

56.06%

Amount
Applicable
to City of

Sherwood

Net General
Obligation

Bonded Debt
Outstanding
Per Caoita

r8,863
3,375

42,1A6
28,340
38,334

41,995,040

_E¿A,¿e1,059_ $ 5,478

Ratio sf
Net General
Obligation

Bonded Debt
Outstanding
to Estimated
ActualValueJurisdiction

Direcl.
City of Sherwood

Overlapping
Metro
Tri-Met
Portland Gommunity College
Washington Gounty
Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue District
School District 88J

Total

$ 6,365,000 100.00Yo $ 6,365,000 $ 395

74,910,882
TBB-,æFtr

0.29o/o

4.A50/

Source: Oregon State Treasury, Munícipal Debt,Advisory Commission
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Resolution 2O11-OOT, Exhibit A
January 18,2011
Page 88 of 93

City of Shenrood, Oregon
Demographíc Statistlcs
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Population
(a)

Per Capita lncome
Median Household City of Washington
Age (b) Size (b) Sherwood (¡) County (b)

31.5 2.77

2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003
2002
2001
2000

16,640
16,420
16,365
16,115
14,948
14,190
14,050
13,680
12,840
10,815

(ã) Source: Portland State University Center for Population Research and Census

1u¡ Source: ESRI

Census data is only avaialable every ten years. Median age, average household size,
and per eapita income is only avqilable from the census report.



Resolulion 201'l-007, Exhib¡t A

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Construction

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Commercial Construction Residential Construction

2014
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003
2002
2001

58
82
73

102
44

1,099
1,090

824
891
987

$ 3,667,582
52,920,675
46,277,307
9,389,197
1,583,056

25,497,289
17,522,668
15,386,561
14,429,746
41,718,367

$ 6,763,315
41,204,023
7,383,156

19,688,517
47,326,363
67,506,532
67,134,145
53,333,606
51,336,528
51,000,496

64
66
67

117
221
606
300
254
285
325

Source: City of Sherwood Building Department



City of Sherwood, Oregon
Miscellaneous Statistics

June 30, 2010

Date Qf incorporation
Form of government
Number of employees
Area of square miles

Miles of streets
Culture and recreation:

Senior / teen centers
Recreation centers
Acres of sports fields
Acres of maintained passive parks

Fire protection by Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue:
Number 0f stations in the City of Sherwood

Poliee protection:
Number of stations

Services provided by Schoof D¡strict 88J:
Number of elementary schools in the City
Number of middle and high schools in the Gity

1

1
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COMPLIANCE SECTION



Resolution 2O11-0O7 , Exhibit A
January 18,201'l
Page 92 of 93

GROVE, MUELLER & SWANK, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC,ICCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS

475 Collage Street NE, Suíte 200, Salem, Oregon 97301
(s03) s8r-7788

IND EP E NDE NT A U DI TOR'S REPO RT

REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE RE GULATIONS

Honorable Mayor and Members
Of the City Council
City of Sherwood, Oregon
22560 SW Pine Street
Sherwood, Oregon 97140

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Sherwood, Oregon (the City) as of and for the year
ended June 30,2010, and have issued our report thereon dated November 19,2010. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Compliance
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Cþ's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specif,red in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-
000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statements amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we
do not express such an opinion.

We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and disclosures
which included, but were not limited to the following:

Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295\.
Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment.
Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294).
Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law.
Programs funded from outside sources.
Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294).
Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A,2798,279C).
Accountability for collecting or receiving money by elected officials - no money was collected or
received by elected officials.

In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the City was not in
substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions
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Resolution 2011-007 , Exhibit A
January 18,2011
Page 93 of 93

of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the
Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, except for over expenditure of appropriations
as indicated in the notes to the financial statements.

OAR 162-10-0230 Internal Control
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting as a basis

for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose ofexpressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not
for the purpose ofexpressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe City's internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial
reporting.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these parties.

GROVE, MUELLER & SIryANK, P.C.
C E RTI F I ED P UB LIC AC C O UNTANTS

By:
Charles A. Swank, A Shareholder
November 19,2010
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